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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

We, being two directors of QBE Insurance (International) Limited, certify that the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Balances Due To Head Office, Statement of Cash Flows and
notes set out on pages 8 to 38 are true copies of the Financial Statements of the New Zealand Branch of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Board of Directors of QBE Insurance (International) Limited authorised these statements for issue on

the [ 0. day of April 2014

DIRECTOR:

DIRECTOR:
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Directors of QBE Insurance (International) Limited New Zealand Branch

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of QBE Insurance (International) Limited New
Zealand Branch (“the Branch”) on pages 4 to 38, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2013, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in balances
due to head office and the statement of cash flows, for the vear then ended, and the notes to the
financial statements that include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Branch are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and
fair view of the matters to which they relate and for such internal controls as the Directors
determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) and
International Standards on Auditing. These standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider the internal controls relevant to the Branch’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Branch’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Branch other than in our capacities as auditors
and tax advisers. These services have not impaired our independence as auditors of the Branch.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 02162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8ooo, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwe.com/nz
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Independent Auditors’ Report

QBE Insurance (International) Limited New Zealand Branch

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 4 to 38:

(i) comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
(ii) comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

(iii)  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Branch as at

31 December 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We also report in accordance with Sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act
1993. In relation to our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

(ii) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Branch as far as
appears from an examination of those records.

Restriction on Use of our Report

This report is made solely to the Directors of the Branch, as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Directors of the Branch those matters which we are
required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Directors
of the Branch, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

fk S
oo

~N— ———

Chartered Accountants Auckland
14 April 2014



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2013

NOTE 2013 2012

$000's $000's

Gross written premium 325,352 311,693
Unearned premium movement {9,386) {22,918)
Gross earned premium revenue 315,966 289,075
Quiward reinsurance premium (150,067) (167,200)
Deferred reinsurance premium movement (5,033) 1,692
Qutward reinsurance premium expense (155,100) (165,508)
Net earned premium 160,866 123,567}
Gross ¢laims incurred 8 (113,963) (293,425)
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 8 57,753 246,888
Net claims incurred 8 {56,210} (46 537)
Gross commission expense {44,297) (42,028)
Reinsurance commission revenue 9,580 21,132
Net commission (34,717) (20,854)
Deferred acquisition cost movement 1,104 407
Underwriting expenses 4 (39,552} (32,405)
Underwriting profit 31,491 24,138
Sundry income 1,448 454
Investment income 7 10,570 9,723
Interest expense (5,960) (6,187)
Investment expense 7 (767) (279)
Profit before income tax 36,782 27,848
[ncome fax expense 8 (10,389) (7,960)
Profit for the year attributable to Head Office Account 26,393 19,888
Other comprehensive income after iIncome tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 26,393 19,888

Head Office Account

The statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

New Zealand Branch

BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2013

NOTE 2013 2012
$000's $000's
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,443 37,815
investments 11 351,390 271,844
Trade and other receivables 12 123,941 119,987
Peferred insurance costs 13 43,509 46,474
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims 18 490,777 693,536
Property, plant and equipment 14 2,152 1,776
Total assets 4,018,212 1,171,532
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 18 141,936 126,947
Current tax liabilities 4,469 3,855
Unearned premium 17 177,740 168,403
Outstanding claims 18 608,370 820,462
Deferred tax liabilities — net 15 7,157 5,248
Total liabilities 939,722 1,124,913
Net assets 78,490 46,619
Due to Head Office ~ Australia 20 78,490 46,619

The balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL} LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BALANCES DUE TO HEAD OFFICE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
HEAD OFFICE — AUSTRALIA NOTE $000's $000°’s
Balance as at 1 January 46,619 25,142
Profit for the year 26,393 19,888
Total comprehensive income 26,393 19,888
Current transactions with Head Office 5,478 1,589
Balance at 31 December 20 78,490 46,619

The statement of changes in balances due to Head Office should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes,

1
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

NOTE $000’s $000°’s
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premium received 316,912 303,449
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 266,583 264,774
Qutwards reinsurance paid {146,616) (183,850)
Claims paid {326,055) {330,568)
insurance costs paid {35,681) (21,855)
Interest received 7,734 7.122
Other operating income 381 4,601
Other operating payments (23,218) (24,122)
Income taxes paid {7,864} {183)
Net cash flows froin operating activities 10 52,175 19,328
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on sale of investments 717,024 760,245
Payments for purchase of investmenits (793,811) {752,473)
Payments for purchase of plant and eguipment (800) {237)
Net cash flows from investing activities {77,587) 7,535
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest expense (5,960) (6,187)
Net cash flows from financing activities (5,960) (6,187}
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents {31,372) 20,676
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
financial year 37,815 17,139
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial
year 10 6,443 37,815

The statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

QBE Insurance {International) Limited (sometimes referred to as the Parent or Head Office}, is a company
incorporated in Australia and operates in New Zealand as a branch (the Branch).

The Branch is an insurer providing general insurance services. It is based at 29 Customs Street West,
Auckland,

The financial statements of the Branch are for the year ended 31 December 2013 and were authorised for issue
by the directors on the 10™ day of April 2014.

The Branch's owners do not have the power to amend these financial statements once issued.
2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(A) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (NZ GAAP). They comply with New Zealand Equivalents fo international Financial Reporting
Standards (NZ IRFS) and other applicable financial reporting standards, as appropriate for profit oriented
entiies. The Branch is a profit oriented entity registered under the Companies Act 1993. It is a reporting entity
for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and the Companies Act 1993.

The financtal statements of the Branch comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

In past years the Branch qualified for and applied the differential reporting exemptions allowed under the
Framework for Differential Reporting. From 1 January 2013 however the Branch became an Issuer under the
Financial Reporting Act 1993 as it became a licenced insurer under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act
2010 during the year. From this date the Branch no longer qualified for nor applied any differential reporiing
exemptions.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
exceptions noted in the financial report, with the principal exceptions being the measurement of financial assets
at fair value and the measurement of the outstanding claims liability and related reinsurance and other
recoveries at the present value.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
reguires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Branch's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions or estimates are
significant, are disclosed in note 4.

{(B) Unearned premium
Unearned premium is calculated based on the term of the risk and in accordance with the expected pattern of
the incidence of risks underwritten, using the daily pro-rata method or the 24ths method.

At each balance sheet date, the adequacy of the unearned premium liability is assessed on a net of reinsurance
basis against the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to potential future claims in respect of
the relevant insurance contracts, plus an additional risk margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty of the central
estimate. If the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to future claims plus the additional risk
margin exceeds the unearned premium liability less related intangible assets and related deferred acquisition
costs, then the unearned premium liability is deemed to be deficient. The resulting deficiency is recognised

immediately through the profit or loss.
o

pwe



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(C) Premium revenue

Premium comprises amounts charged to policyholders, excluding taxes collected on behalf of third parties. The
earned portion of premium received and receivable, including unclosed business, is recognised as revenue.
Premium on unclosed business is brought to account based upon the pattern of booking of renewals and new

business.

(D} Outward reinsurance

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recegnised as an expense from the attachment date over the period of
indemnity of the reinsurance coniract in accordance with the expected pattern of the incidence of risk.
Accordingly, a portion of outward reinsurance premium is treated as deferred reinsurance premium at the
balance sheet date.

(E) Claims

The provision for outstanding claims is measured as the central estimate of the present value of expected future
claims payments plus a risk margin. The expected future payments include those in relation to claims reported
but not yet paid; claims incurred but not reported {IBNR); claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER); and
estimated claims handling costs. Claims expense represents claim payments adjusted for the movement in the
outstanding claims liability.

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using a risk-free rate.

A risk margin is applied to the central estimate, net of reinsurance and other recoveries, to reflect the inherent
uncertainty in the central estimate.

{F) Reinsurance and other recoveries
Reinsurance and other recoveries on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid, |IBNR and IBNER are

recognised as revenue,

Amounts recoverable are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment of outstanding claims. Recoveries
are measured as the present value of the expected future receipts, caloulated on the same basis as the
provision for outstanding claims.

{G) Acdquisition costs

Acquisition costs (which include commission costs) are the costs associated with obtaining and recording
insurance contracts, Acquisition costs are capitalised when they relate to the acquisition of new business or the
renewal of existing business and are referred to as deferred acquisition costs. These costs are amortised on the
same basis as the earning pattern of the premium, over the period of the insurance contract to which they
relate. At the reporting date, deferred acquisition costs represent the capifalised costs that relate to the
unearned premium. Acquisition cosis are deferred in recognition of their future benefit and are measured at the
lower of cost and recoverable amount.

{H) Investment income

interest income is recognised on an accruals basis. Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment
is established. Investment income includes realised and unrealised gains or losses on financial assets which are
reported on a combined basis as net fair value gains or losses on financial assets in the Statement of
Comprehansive Income.

n Taxation

The income tax expense for the year is the tax payable on the current year's taxable income, adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the Jfability method, on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabllities and their catrying amountis in the financial statements.



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rate expected to apply
when the assefs are recovered or liabilities are settied. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative
amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An
exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or liability. No
deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a
transaction that is not a business combination and at the time did not affect either accounting profit or taxable
loss.

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assels
and liabilities. Current tax assets and liabilities are offsef where the entity has a legally enforceable right o offset
and intends either to seltle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

(J) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank and on hand and deposits at call which are readily convertible
to cash on hand and which are used for operational cash requirements.

{K) Investments

Investments comprise interest-bearing assets. Investments are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition. They are initially recorded at fair value, being the cost of acquisition excluding fransaction
costs, and are subsequently remeasured o fair value at each reporting date. The policy of management is to
designate a group of financial assets or financlal liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss when that group
is both managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis for both Internal and external reporting in
accordance with the Branch's documented investment sirategy.

Fixed and floating rate securities are valued using independently sourced valuations.

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery of the asset within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way" transactions) are recognised at trade date, being the date on
which the Branch commits fto buy or seli the asset. Invesiments are derecognised when the right to receive
future cash flows from the asset has expired or has been transferred and the Branch has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(L} Trade and other receivabies

Trade and other receivables are recognised at amount receivable less a provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Branch will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original term of the receivable. Any increase or decrease in the provision for
impairment is recognised in profit or loss within underwriting expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the provision for impairment account. Subsequent recoveries of amounis previously written
off are credited against underwriting expenses in profit or loss.

{M} Property, plant and equipment

All plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. Plant and equipment is
depreciated using the diminishing value method over the estimated useful life of each class of asset. Estimated
useful lives are between three and ten years.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as & separate assef, as
approptiate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the iflem will flow to the
Branch and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each

reparting period.
5
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL)} LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

An asset's carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘operating expenses' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(N) Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment or more frequently when chariges in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject fo amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised as the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and its value In use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped in cash generating units
which are the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable: cash flows.

(O) Trade and other payables
Trade and cther payables are measured at cost and are setfled under standard terms and conditions. Related
party payables are measured at cost and are repayable on demand.

(P} Foreign currency

{i) Functional and Presenfation currency

The Branch's financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, being the functional and presentation
currency of the Branch.

(ify Translation of foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into New Zealand doilars at the spot rates of exchange applicable
at the dates of the transactions. At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and [fabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Resulting exchange gains and
losses are included in profit or loss.

(iii) Hedging transactions
Derivatives may be used to hedge the foreign exchange risk relating to certain transactions.

{Q) Employee benefits
{i) Superannuation

The Branch contributes to a privately administered pension plan on a mandatory, confractual or voluntary basis.
The Branch has no obligation once the contributions have been paid. All contributions are recognised as an
employee expense when they are due.

(i) Share based payment

The employees of the branch participate in an equity settled share based compensation plan of QBE Insurance
Group Limited, For all other options and conditional rights, the fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of those instruments is recognised as an expense.

(iiiy Other

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating sick leave
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of
employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilitles are settied. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and
measured at the rates paid or payable.

The fiability for employee entitlements is carried at the present value of the esfimated future cash flows.

?;E 12
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(R} Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are refained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives receivad from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

(S} Goods and services tax (GST)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of
GST. All items in the Statement of Financial Position are stated net of GST, with the exception of receivables
and payables, which include GST invoiced.

{T) Comparatives
Prior period comparative information has been amended to achieve consistency in disclosure with the current
year.

(i) Presentation of The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been changed fo align with the Parent
campany format.

(i)  Balance Shest comparatives for the prior year have been reclassified by grossing up asseis and liabilities
previously offset. The impact of these movements is reflected in the table below:

Dec 12 Dec 12
Restated Prior ¥Yr Movement
$000’s $000's $000’s

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 37,815 37,815 -
Investmenis 271,944 271,944 -
Trade and other receivables 119,987 108,874 11,013
Deferred insurance cosis 46,474 23,299 23,175
Reinsurance and other recoveries on
outstanding claims 693,536 i 693,536
Property plant and equipment 1776 1,776 -
Total assets 1,172,832 443,808 727,724
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 128,847 114,531 12,418
Current tax liabilities 3,855 3,855 -
Unearned premium 168,403 146,631 21,772
Qutstanding claims 820,462 126,926 £93,536
Deferred tax liahilities 5,246 5,246 -
Total liabilities 1,124,813 397,189 727,724
Net assets/Due to Head Office 46,619 46,619 -

3. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards which have been published and
are mandatary for the Branch's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 have not been early
adopted:

« NZIFRS 9, Financial Instruments effective 1 January 2017. Introduces changes in the classification and
measurement of financlal assets and liabilities. Not expected to have a material impact on the financial
statements.

s Amendment to IAS 32, Financial Instruments Presentation effective 1 January 2014, Clarifies some of
the requirements for offsetting financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. Not expected to have
a material impact on the financial statements.

pve



QBE INSURANCE {(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

+ Amendment to IAS 36, Impairment of Assets effective 1 January 2014. Addresses the disclosure of
information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal. Not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

« Amendment to |1AS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement effective 1 January 2014,
Addresses the novation of derivatives and hedge accounting. Not expected fo have a material impact
on the financial statements.

The Branch has adopted the following new standards as of 1 January 2013:

o NZ IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement effective 1 January 2013. Replaces the existing guidance with a
single standard, and has no material impact on the financial statements other than additional disclosure
requirements.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Branch makes estimates and assumptions in respect of certain key assets and [iabilities. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates of the outstanding claims as at 31 December 2013 has been carried out by Kon Makris, Fellow of the
Institute of Actuaries of Australia.

The actuarial assessments are in accordance with the standards of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries. The
Actuary is satisfied as to the nature, sufficiency and accuracy of the data used to determine the outstanding
claims liability.

The outstanding claims liability is set at a level that is appropriate and sustainable to cover the Group's
obligations after having regard to the prevailing market environment and prudent industry practice.

The key areas in which critical estimates and judgments are applied are described as follows:

(A) OQutstanding claims provision

The Branch’s net outstanding claims provision comprises:

« the gross central estimate of expected future claims payments;

+ amounts recoverable from reinsurers based on the gross central estimate;

- a reduction to reflect the discount fo present value using risk-free rates of return to reflect the time value of
money; and

« a risk margin that reflects the inherent uncertainty in the net discounted central estimate.

A net discounted central estimate is intended to represent the mean of the distribution of the expected future
cash flows. As the Branch requires a higher probability that estimates will be adequate over time, a risk margin
is added to the net discounted central estimate to determine the outstanding claims provision.

{iy Cenfral estimates

The provision for expected future payments includes those in relation to claims reported but not yet paid; claims
incurred but not reported (IBNR); claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER), and estimated claims
handling costs, being the indirect expenses incurred in the settlement of claims.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Branch, where more information about the claims is generally available.
Liability and other long tail classes of business, where claims seftlement may not happen for many years after
the event giving rise to the claim, typically display greater variability between initial estimates and final
settlermnent due to delays in reporting clatims, uncertainty in respect of court awards and future claims inflation.
Claims in respect of property and other short tail classes are typically reported and settled sconer after the claim
event, giving rise to more certainty. The estimation techniques and assumptions used in determining the central
estimate are described below,

J 1
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QBE INSLURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

The Branch's process for establishing the centrai estimate involves extensive consultation with internal and
external actuaries, claims managers, underwriters and other senior management. This process includes half
yearly internal claims provisioning committee meetings attended by the senior management and the Appointed
Actuary and detailed review by external actuaries at least annually. The risk management procedures related to
the actuarial function are explained further in note 5.

The determination of the amounts that the Branch will ultimately pay for claims arising under insurance and
reinsurance contracts involves a number of critical assumptions. Some of the uncertainties impacting these
assurnptions are as follows:

« changes in patterns of claims incidence, reporting and payment;

« volatility in the estimation of future costs for long tail insurance classes due fo the longer period of time that
elapses before a definitive determination of the ultimate claims cost can be made;

« incidence of catastrophic events close to the balance sheet date;

« changes in the legal environment, including the interpretation of liability laws and the quantum of damages;
and

» social and ecenomic trends, for example price and wage inflation and interest rates.

The potential impact of changes in key assumptions used in the determination of the central estimate and the
prebability of adequacy of the central estimate on the Branch’s profit or loss are summarised in note 4(A)}(v).

Central estimates for each class of business are determined by reference to a variety of estimation technigues,
generally based on a statistical analysis of historical experience which assumes an underlying pattern of claims
development and payment. The final selected central estimates are based on a judgmental consideration of the
results of each method and qualitative information, for example, the class of business, the maturity of the
porifolio and the expected term to settlement of the class. Projections are based on both historical experience
and external benchmarks where relevant,

Central estimates are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the
amourtts recoverable from reinsurers based on the gress central estimate.

The net central estimate is discounted at risk-free rates of return to reflect the time value of money. Details of
the key assumptions applied in the discounting process are summarised In note 4(A)(iv).

{iiy Assets arising from contracts with reinsurers

Assels arising from contracts with the Branch's reinsurers are determined using the same methods described
above. In addition, the recoverability of these assets is assessed at each balance sheet date o ensure that the
balances properly reflect the amounts that will ultimately be received, taking into account counterparty credit risk
and the contractual terms of the reinsurance contract. Counterparty and credit risk in relation to reinsurance
assets is considered in note 5(C)(ii).

{ili} Risk margin

Risk margins are determined by management and are held to mitigate the potential for uncertainty in the central
estimate. The determination of the appropriate level of risk margin takes into account similar factors to those
used to determine the central estimate, such as:

» change in the mix of business, in particular the mix of short tail and long tail business and the overall weighted
average ferm to settlement;

» prior accident year claims development; and

» the level of uncertainty in the net discounted central estimate due to actuarial estimation, data quality issues,
variability of key discount and inflation assumptions and legisiative uncertainty.

The variability by class of business uses techniques similar to those used in determining the central estimate.
These techniques determine a range of possible outcomes of ultimate payments and assign a likelihood to
outcomes at different levels. These techniques use standard statistical distributions, and the measure of
variability is referred to as the coefficient of variation.
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The appropriate risk margin for two or more classes of business combined is likely to be less than the sum of
the risk margins for the individual classes. This reflects the benefit of diversification in general insurance. The
statistical measure used to determine diversification is called the correlation. The higher the correlation between
two classes of business, the more likely it is that a negative outcome in one class will correspond to a negative
outcome in the other class.

The risk margin for the Branch is determined by analysing the variability of each class of business and the
correlation between classes of business and divisions. Correlations are determined for aggregations of classes
of business. Whilst there are estimation techniques for determining correlations, they are difficult to apply. The
correlations adopted by the Branch are normally derived from industry analysis and the judgement of
experienced and qualified actuaries.

The probability of adequacy is a statistical measure of the relative adequacy of the outstanding claims provision
and is derived from the comparison of the risk margin with the net discounted central estimate. Using a range of
outcomes, it allows a determination of the probability of adequacy represented by a risk margin. For example,
a 50% probability of adequacy indicates that the outstanding claims provision is expected to be adequate nine
times in ten. The appropriate level of risk margin is not determined by reference to a fixed probability of

adequacy.

{iv) Financial assumptions used to determine the ocutstanding claims provision

Discount rates

NZ IFRS Standard 4 Insurance Contracts requires that the outstanding claims provision shall be discounted for
the time value of money using risk-free rates that are based on current observable, objective rates that relate to
the nature, structure and terms of the future obligations. The standard also sfates that government bond rates
may be an appropriate starting point in determining a risk-free rate. The Branch generally uses currency specific
risk-free rates to discount the outstanding claims provision,

The discount rates used in the measurement of outstanding claims and reinsurance recoveries for the
succeeding year was 2.90% (2012: 2.53%) and subsequent years were 3.29% — 4.70% {2012; 2.53% - 3.71%).

Weighted average term fo settlement
The relevant discount rate is applied to the anticipated cash flow profile of the central estimate, including related
reinsurance recoveries, determined by reference to a combination of historical analysis and current expectations
of when claims and recoveries wilt be settled. The weighted average term to settlement of the Branch's claims
provision is 1.6 years (2012: 2.1 years).

{v} Impact of changes in key variables on the outstanding claims provision

The impact of changes in key variables used in the calculation of the outstanding claims provision is
summarised in the table below. Each change has been calculated in isolation from the other changes and each
change shows the affer tax impact on profit assuming that there is no change to any of the other variables. in
practice, this is considered unlikely as, for example, an increase in interest rates is normally accompanied by an
increase in the rate of inflation.

The sensitivities below assume that all changes directly impact profit after tax. In practice, however, it is likely
that if the central estimate was to increase by 5%, at least part of the increase would result in a decrease in the
probability of adequacy. Likewise, if the coefficient of variation were to increase by 1%, it is likely that the
probability of adequacy would reduce from its current level and that the change would therefore impact the
amount of risk margins held rather than net profit affer income tax or equity.,

The Impact of a change in interest rates on profit after tax due to market value movement on fixed interest
securities is shown in note 5(D)(ii).
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FINANCIAL IMPACT

PROFIT (LOSS)'
MOVEMENT IN

VARIABLE 2013 2012

Yo $000's $000's
Inflation rates increase of 1% (1,153) (1,855)

decrease of 1% 1,130 1,855

Discount rates increase of 1% 1,081 1,828
decrease of 1% (1,124) {1,828)
Claims expenses ratio increase of 1% (658) (841)

decrease of 1% 658 841

Weighted average term to settlement +0.5 years 1,169 1,289
-0.5 years (1,189 {1,289)

Getermined at the Branch level net of reinsurance and taxation

' Net of tax at the Branch’s prima facie rate of 28%

(B) Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date, the adequacy of the unearned premium liability is assessed on a net of reinsurance
basis against the present value of the expected future cash flows relating fo potential future claims, plus a risk
margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty of the central estimate. Future claims are those claims expected to
arise from claims events occutring after the balance sheet date. The assessment is carried out using the same
methods described in note 4(A) above and 17(B).

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

QBE Group's risk management policy, strategy and framework are embedded in the head office and in each of
the divisional operations and business units within each of the divisions, ensuring a consistent approach to
managing risk across the organisation. The board annually approves a comprehensive risk management
strategy {RMS), including a risk appetite statement and a reinsurance management strategy (REMS).

As a member of the QBE Greup, the Branch has adopted the risk management policy of QBE Group where
applicable. The Branch's risk management objectives are to:

« achieve competitive advantage through better understanding the risk environment in which QBE operates;
« optimise risk and more effectively allocate resources by assessing the balance of risk and reward; and
+ avoid unwelcome surprises by reducing uncertainty and volatifity.

[t is QBE Group's policy to adopt a rigorous approach to managing risk throughout each of the divisions and
business units. Risk mapagement is a continuous process and an integral part of quality business management,
QBE Group’s approach is to integrate risk management inio the broader management processes of the
crganisation. it is QBE Group's philosaphy to ensure that risk management remains embedded in the business
and that the risk makers or risk takers are themselves the risk managers. Specifically, the management of risk
must occur at each point in the business management cycle,

Risk management is 2 key part of our governance structure and our sirategic and business planning. It
underpins the setting of Iimits and authorities and it is embedded in the monitoring and evaluation of
performance. This holistic approach to risk management allows all of the Branch's risks to be managed in an
integrated manner.

QBE Group's global risk management framework defines the risks that QBE Group is exposed to and sets out
the framework to manage those risks and meet strategic objectives whilst taking into account the creation of
value of our shareholders. The framework is made up of complementary elements that are embedded
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throughout the business managemertt cycle and culture. Key aspects include: governance, risk appetite and
tolerance, delegated authorities, risk policies, measurement and modelling, risk and conkrol self assessment,
risk treatment, optimisation and ongoing improvement through management action plans, risk and perfoermance
monitoring.

A fundamental part of the Branch's overall risk management strategy is the effective governance and
managerment of the risks that impact the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows from insurance contracts.
The operating activities of the Branch expose it to risks such as market risk, credit risk and fiquidity risk.
The branch's risk management framework recognises the unpredictabilify of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Branch has established internal controls to
manage risk in the key areas of exposure relevant to its business.

The Branch’s risk profile is described under the following broad risk categories:

» Strategic risk

« Insurance risk
« Credit risk

« Market risk

« Liguidity risk

« Operational risk
» Group risk

Each of these is described more fully in sections (A) to (G) below.

{A) Strategic risk

Strategic risk refers to the current and prospective impact on earnings and or capital arising from strategic
business decisions, implementation of decisions and responsiveness to external change. This includes risks
associated with business strategy and change, tax planning, investment strategy and corporate governance. Of
particular relevance is capital management risk.

Capital management risk

The Branch is subject to extensive prudential and other forms of regulation in the jurisdictions in which they
conduct business. Prudential regulation is generally designed to protect policyholders. Regulation covers a
number of areas including solvency, change in control and capifal movement limitations. The regulatory
environment in NZ, Australia and overseas continues to evolve in response to economic, political and industry
developments. QBE Group works closely with regufators and monitors reguiatory developments across its
giobal operations to assess their potential impact on its ability to meet solvency and other requirements.

(B) Insurance risk

Insurance risk is the risk of fluctuations in the timing, frequency and severity of insured events and claims
settlements, relative to the expectations at the time of underwriting. This includes underwriting, catastrophe,
claims concentration and claims estimation risks. The risks inherent in any single insurance contract are the
possibility of the insured event occurring and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very
nature of an insurance contract, these risks are random and unpredictable. In relation to the pricing of individual
insurance contracts and the determination of the level of the outstanding claims provision in relation to a
portfolio of insurance contracts, the principal risk is that the uitimate claims payments will exceed the carrying
amount of the provision established.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variabilily
around the expected outcome wilt be. In addition, 2 more diversified insurance Branch is less likely o be
affected by a change in any one specific porifolio. The Branch has developed its underwriting strategy to
diversify the type of insurance risks accepted, and where possible, within each of these categories, to achieve a
sufficiently farge population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

QBE Group has established the following protocols to manage its insurance risk across the underwriting, claims
and outwards reinsurance.

ooy
frRsyilic) ]
e



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(i) Underwriting risks

Selection and pricing of risks

Underwriting authority is delegated to experienced underwriters for the forthcoming year following a detailed
retrospective and prospective analysis of each class of business as part of the Branch's annual business
planning process. Delegated authorities reflect the level of risk which the Branch allows. The authorities include
reference to some combination of:

« return on risk adjusted equity;

« gross written premium;

« premium per contract;

» sum insured per contract;

aggregate exposures per zohe;

probable maximum loss and realistic disaster scenarios (RDS);
levels and quality of reinsurance protection;

geographic exposures; and/ar

+ classes of business and types of product that may be written.

Limits in respect of each of the above are set at a portfolio and Branch level and are included within business
plans for individual classes of business. They are adjusted to reflect a risk factor In respect of previous
underwriting results, the economic environment and other potential drivers of volatility.

fnsurance and reinsurance policies are written in accordance with the Branch’s management practices and New
Zealand regulations taking into account the Branch's risk appetite and tolerance and underwriting standards.
Non-standard and long-term policies may only be written if expressly included in the delegated authorities. No
individual long-term or non-standard policy is material to the Branch.,

Pricing of risks is controlled by the use of in-house pricing models relevant fo specific portfolios. Experlenced
underwriters and actuaries maintain historica) pricing and claims analysis for each portfolio and this is combined
with a detailed knowledge of the current developments in the respective markets and classes of husiness.

Concentration risk

The Branch's exposure to concentrations of Insurance risk is mitigated by a portfolio diversified by muitipie
classes of business. Product diversification is achieved through a strategy of developing strong underwriting
skills in a wide variety of classes of business.

The Branch has potential exposure fo catastrophe losses. The Branch undertakes probable maximum loss
modelling to ensure the Branch operates within its tolerance to concentration risk.

(ii) Claims management and claims estimation risks

The Branch's approach to determining the outstanding claims provision and the related sensitivities are set out
in note 4. The Branch seeks to ensure the adequacy of its outstanding claims provision by reference to the
following confrols:

= experienced claims managers werk with underwriters on coverage issues and operate within the levels of

authority delegated to them in respect of the settlement of claims;

processes exist to ensure that all claims advices are captured and updated on a timely basis with a realistic

assessment of the ultimate claims cost;

initial IBNR estimates are set by experienced internal actuaries in conjunction with the local product managers

and underwriters for each class of business in each business unit. The valuation of the cenfral estimate is

primarily performed by actuaries who are not involved in the pricing function and who therefore provide an
independent assessment;

the determination of the risk margin is performed by senior management and the Board with input from the

Appointed Actuary;

« the aggregate outstanding claims provision for each controlled entity is assessed in a series of quarterly
internal claims review meetings which are attended by senior management and the Appointed Actuary in
order to ensure consistency of provisioning practices across all countries; and

+ all of the Branch's central estimate is reviewed by external actuaries at least annually.
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Despite the rigour involved in the establishment and review of the outstanding claims provision, the provision is
subject to significant uncertainty for the reasons provided in note 4.

{(iii} Reinsurance

Reinsurance is purchased to make the Branch's results more predictable by reducing the effect that individual
targe claims, and catastrophic events that lead to multiple claims, have on results, The majority of reinsurance
will be arranged on a non proportional excess of loss treaty basis. Facultative cover will only be used where the
inclusion of certain risks in the treaty would have an undue effect on the treaty or where there was a specific
exposure that could not be covered under the treaty.

The Branch's strategy in respect of the selection, approval and monitoring or reinsurance arrangements is
addressed by the following protocols:

+ Placement of appropriate treaty or facultative reinsurance is governed by the Branch's reinsurance
management strategy and Group commitiee guidelines.

¢ Reinsurance arrangements are regularly reassessed to determine their effectiveness based on current
exposures, histaric losses and potential future losses based on realistic disaster scenarios.

The quality of the Branch’s exposure to reinsurance counterparties is actively monitored at Branch level with
reference to detailed detailed counterparty analysis prepared using age of balance and rating agency analysis.

(C} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of default by transactional counterparties as well as the loss of value of assets due to
deterioration in credit quality. Exposure fo credit risk results from financial fransactions with securities issuers,
debtors, brokers, policyholders and reinsurers.

The Branch's credit risk arises mainly from investment and reinsurance protection activities. The following
policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Branch's exposure to credit risk:

« A QBE Group-wide investment credit risk policy is in place which defines what constitutes credit risk for QBE
group and establishes tolerance levels. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches
are reported to the QBE Group investment committee.

« Net exposure limits are set for each counterparty or group of counterpaities in relation to investments, cash
deposits and forward foreign exchange exposures. The policy also sets out minimum credit ratings for
investments.

« QBE Group has strict guidelines covering the limits and terms of net open derivative positions and the
counterparties with which the Branch may transact. The Branch does not expect any investment
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations given their strong credit ratings and therefore does not require
collateral or other security to support derivatives.

«» Credit risk in respect of premium debtors and reinsurance receivables is actively monitored, Strict controls are
maintained over counterparty exposures. Business is transacted with counterparties that have a strong credit
rating and concentration of risk is managed by adherence to counterparty limits. The provision for impairment
is formally assessed by management at least four times a year.
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(i)  Credit quality of financial assets

The following tables provide information regarding the Branch's aggregate credit risk exposure at the balance
sheet date in respect of the major classes of financial assets. Trade and other receivables are excluded from
this analysis on the basis that they comprise of smaller credit risk items which generally cannct be rated and are
not individually material. The analysis classifies the assets according to Moody's counterparty credit ratings.
Aaa is the highest possible rating.

CREDIT RATING
Aaa Aa A TOTAL
$000's 5000’s $000's $000’s
At 31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivaients - 6,208 235 6,443
interest bearing investments 24,821 326,569 - 351,390
At 31 December 2012
Cash and cash equivalents - 37,657 158 37.815
interest bearing investments 35,843 236,101 - 271,944

The carrying amount of the relevant asset classes in the balance sheet represents the maximum amount of
credit exposure,

The following table provides information regarding the ageing of the Branch's financial assets that are past due
but not impaired at the balance sheet date.

PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

ASTRUE Toros  stos ewmsto SRR o
MTHS MTHS 1 YEAR
IMPAIRED YEAR
$000's  $000's $000's $000°s $000's $000’s

At 31 December 2013
Amounts due from related
entities 980 - - “ - 980
Premium receivable ' 61,469 5,035 81 - - 66,585
Other debtors 9,935 - - “ - 9,935
At 31 December 2012
Amounts due from related
entities 11,013 - - - - 11,013
Premium receivable ' 61,052 2,298 66 - - 63416
Other debtors 8,691 - - - - 8,691

" Net of a provision for impairment
{(ii) Reinsurance counterparty credit risk
The Branch's objeciive is to maximise placement of reinsurance with highly rated counterparties. Concentration

of risk with reinsurance counterparties is monitored strictly and reguiarly by the divisional security committee
and is controlled by reference to the following protocols:

=
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« Treaty or facultative reinsurance is placed in accordance with the requirements of the Branch’'s reinsurance
management strategy and Group security committee guidelines.

« Reinsurance arrangements are regularly reassessed to determine their effectiveness based on current
exposures, historic losses and potential future losses and the Branch's maximum event retention.

+ Exposure to reinsurance counterparties and the credit quality of those counterparties is actively monitored.

The following table provides information about the quality of the Branch’s credit risk exposure in respect of
undiscounted reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims at the balance sheet date. The analysis
classifies the assets according to Standard and Poors counterparty rafings. AAA is the highest possibie rating.

CREDIT RATING
NOT

AAA AA A BBB RATED TOTAL

$000's $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's

Reinsurance 2013 - 263,618 252,623 548 1 516,780
recoveries on

outstanding

claims’ 2012 - 389,074 333457 228 47 722,806

Reinsurance 2013 - 12,580 4,336 - - 16,916
recoveries on

- 8,145 5,111 - - 13,256

paid claims’ 2012
! Net of a provision fer impairment.

There are no amounts past due, (2012 nil)

(D)  WMarket risk
Market risk is the risk of variability in the value of, and returns on, investments and the risk associated with

variability of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and economy-wide inflation on both assets and liabilities,
excluding insurance liabilities.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk {due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates), interest
rate risk (due to fluctuations in market interest rates); and price risk {due to fluctuations in market prices). Within
each of these categories, risks are evaluated before considering the effect of mitigating controls. The existence
and effectiveness of such mitigating controls are then measured to ensure that residual risks are managed
within the Branch's risk appstite and tolerance.

(i)  Currency risk

The Branch's exposure fo currency risk generally arises as a result of the transiation of foreign currency
amounts back to the functional currency of the Branch. There is no material currency risk exposure to the
Branch.

{ii) Interest rate risk
Financial instruments with floating interest rate expose the Branch to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas fixed
interest rate instruments expose the Branch to fair value interest rate risk.

QBE Group's risk management approach is to minimise interest rate risk by actively managing investment
portfolios to achieve a balance between cash flow interest raie risk and fair value interest rate risk. The Branch
invests in high quality, liquid interest-bearing securities and cash and actively manages the duration of the fixed
interest portfolio.

The claims provision is discounted to present value by reference to risk-free inlerest rates. The Branch is
therefore exposed to potential underwriting result volatility as a result of interest rate movements. In practice,
however, an increase or decrease in interest rates is normally offset by a corresponding increase or decrease in
inflation. Details are provided in note 4(A}v). QBE Group has a policy of maintaining a relatively short duration
for assets backing insurance liabilities in order to minimise any further potential volatility affecting insurance
profit.
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The confractual maturity profile of the Branch’s interest-bearing financial assets and hence its exposure o
interest rate risk, and the effeclive weighted average interest rate for interest-bearing financial assets
is analysed in the table below. The table includes investments at the maturity date of the security; however, many
of the longer dated securities have call dates of relatively short duration.

INTEREST - BEARING FINANCIAL ASSETS MATURING IN

1 YEAR 1TO2 2TO3 3TO4 4TO5

ORLESS  YEARS  YEARS  YEARS  YEARS  'O'AL
At 31 December 2013
Fixed rate $000's 229,089 16,701 - - - 245,790
Weighted
average interest % 2.85% 3.53% 0% 0% 0% 2.89%
rate
Floating rate $000's 21,602 39,896 27,851 14,514 8,180 112,043
Weighied
average interest % 2.78% 3.19% 3.30% 3.44% 3.54% 3.19%
rate
At 31 December 2012
Fixed rate $000's 176,035 7,293 10,852 - - 194,180
Weighted
average interest Yo 2.76% 3.26% 2.81% - - 2.78%
rate
Floating rate $000's 54,393 15,043 21,549 12,430 12,164 115,579
Weighted
average interest % 2.56% 3.68% 3.91% 4.15% 4,18% 3.36%
rale

All financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Movements in interest rates impact the
value of interest-bearing financial assets and therefore impact reported profit after tax. The impact of a 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rates on interest-bearing financial assets owned by the Branch at the balance
sheet date is shown in the table below.

PROFITALOSS) & EQUITY'

SENSITIVITY 2013 2012
% $000’s $000's

Interest rate movement - interest-bearing financial assets +0.50 (354) (354)
~0.50 354 354

! Net of tax at the Branch’s prima facie rate of 28%

(ii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate or currency risk), whether those changes

are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded on the market.

At 31 December 2013, the Branch did not hold any investments in listed equities (2012: nil). The branch is
exposed to price risk on its investment in corporate fixed interest and floating rate securities. All corporate
securities are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Movements in credit spreads impact the value of
corporate fixed interest and floating rate securities and therefore impact reported profit after tax. The profit/(loss)
impact in $000's of a plus or minus 0.5% change in credit spreads is (1,008) — 980, 2012 (858) - 858.
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(E) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of insufficient liquid assets to meet liabilities as they fall due to policyholders and
creditors. This includes the risk associated with asset liability management. The key objective of the Branch's
asset and liability management strategy is to ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained at all times to meet the
Branch's obligations including its settlement of insurance liabilities and, within these parameters, to optimise
investment returns for the Parent.

Liquidity must be sufficient to meet both planned and unplanned cash requirements. The Branch is exposed to
liquidity risk mainly through its obligations to make payments in relation to its insurance activities.

In addition to treasury cash held for working capital requirements, and in accordance with the Branch’s liquidity
policy, a minimum percentage of investments and cash is heid in liquid, short-term money market securities to
ensure that there are sufficient liquid funds available to meet insurance obligations. The Branch has a strong
fliquidity position. The maturity of the Branch’s interest-bearing financial assets is included in note 5(D)(ii}.

The Branch may limit the risk of liquidity shortfalls resulting from mismatches in the timing of claims payments
and receipts of claims recoveries by negotiating cash call clauses in reinsurance contracts and seeking
accelerated settlements for large reinsurance recoveries.

The Branch has no significant concentration of liguidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Branch's net outstanding claims provision is analysed in note 18(B). All other financial
liabilities have a contractual maturity profile of 1 year or less except for the Mandatory Convertible Notes (MCN's)
which have a longer life.

The MCN's are subject to contractual interest obligations over the term of the facility. Interest payments are based
on the Bloomberg 6 month mid rate for New Zealand Bank Bills plus a margin. Refer note 26 for further details.

{F)  Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events (including legai risk). The Branch manages operational risk within the same
robust risk management framework as its other risks. The risk assessment and monitoring framework involves

on-going:

« identification and review of the key risks to the Branch;

» definition of the acceptable level of risk appetite and tolerance;

« assessment of those risks throughout the Branch in terms of the acceptable level of risk (risk tolerance) and
the residual risk remaining after having considered risk {reatment;

+ assessment of whether each risk is within the acceptable level of risk, or requires appropriate action be taken
to mitigate any excess risk;

» transparent monitoring and reporting of risk management related matters on a timely basis; and

= alignment of internal audit programs with risks.

One of the cornerstones of the Branch's risk management framework is the recruitment and retention of high
quality pecple who are entrusted with appropriate levels of aufonomy within the parameters of disciplined risk
management practices.

The Branch operates a system of delegated authorities based on expertise and proven performance, and
compliance is closely monitored. Other controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls and
authorisation and reconciliation procedures.

G)  Group risk
ggroup risk is the risk to the Branch arising specifically from being part of the Group, including the financial
impact and loss of support from the parent company.



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

6. EXPENSES

2013 2012
$000's $000’s
Depreciation — leasehold improvements 96 102
Depreciation — property, plant & equipment 323 255
Employee benefit expenses 26,997 25,080
Lease and rental charges 1,712 1,835
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 4 46
Provision for doubtful debis 15 13
Head office charges 5,969 3,861
Retirement plan contributions 1,131 1,407
Qther expenses 3,305 {204}
39,552 32,405
7. INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENSE
2013 2042
$000’s $000°s
Investment income
Interest received or receivable 7,911 6,957
Net fair value gains on financial assets 2,659 2,765
10,570 9,723
Investment expense
Foreign exchange (losses)/profit {454) 8
Investment expenses {313) (287)
{767) (279)
Net investment income 9,803 9,444
8. CLAIMS INCURRED
Claims analysis
2013 2012
$000’s $000's
Gross claims incurred and related expenses
Direct 113,963 293,425
Reinsurance and other recoveries
Direct 87,753 246,888
Net claims incurred 56,210 46,537
Ty
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(B) Claims development

Current year's claims relale to risks borne in the current reporiing year. Prior year claims relate to a
reassessment of the risks borne in all previous reporting years and include releases of risk margins as claims
are paid.

2013 2012
CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL
YEAR YEARS YEAR YEARS
$000’s $000°s $000's $000's $000°s $000's
Gross claims incurred
and related expenses
Undiscounted 94,866 15,613 110,478 109,331 183,265 292,596
Discount (2,986) 6,470 3,484 (3,662) 4,491 829
91,880 22,083 113,963 105,669 187,756 293,425
Reinsurance and other
recoveries
Undiscounted 28,746 28,750 54,496 44,203 202,564 246,767
Discount {967) 4,224 3,257 {1,575) 1,696 121
27,779 29,874 57,753 42 628 204,260 246,888
Net claims incurred
Undiscounted 66,120 {10,137) 55,983 65,128 (19,299) 45,829
Discount {2,018) 2,246 227 (2,087) 2,795 708
64,101 (7,891) 56,210 63,041 {16,504) 46,537

(C) Reconciliation of net ciaims incurred to claims development table

The development of the net outstanding ctaims for the 10 most recent accident years is shown in note 18(E).
This note is a reconciliation of the amounts included in the table in nole 8{(B) and the current financial year
movements in the claims development table,

2013 2012
CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL

YEAR YEARS YEAR YEARS

$000's $000's $000°s $000's $000's $000’s
Net undiscounted claims
development — ceniral
estimate (note 18 (E)) 53,734 2,055 55,789 54,423 {11,643) 42,780
Movement in claims
settlement costs 4,553 (3,924) 629 1,026 5,101 6,127
Movement in discount {2,019) 2,246 227 (2,087) 2,795 708
Movement in risk margin 7,833 (8,268) (435) 9,679 (12,757) (3,078)

Net claims incurred —
discounted 84,101 (7,891) 56,210 63,041 (16,504) 46,537
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9. INCOME TAX

Reconciliation of prima facie tax to income tax expense

2013 2012

$000's $000’s

Profit before income tax 36,782 27,848

Prima facie tax payable at 28% 10,299 7,797
Tax effect of non-temporary differences:

Non-allowable expenses and non-taxable income 67 63
Prima facie tax adjusted for non-temporary differences 10,366 7,860
Under provision in prior years 23 100
Income tax expense 10,388 7,980
Analysed as follows:

Current tax 8,478 4,895

Deferred tax 1,911 3,065

10,389 7,960
Deferred {ax expense comprises:
Deferred tax assets recognised in profit or loss 958 2,686
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in profit or loss 953 378
1,911 3,085
10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2013 2012
$000's $000's
Cash at bank and on hand 6,443 37,8156

Amounts in cash and cash equivalents are the same as those included in the cash flow statement.

Cash and cash equivalents include balances readily convertible to cash. All balances are held to service normal
operational requirements.

Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash flows from operating activities

2013 2012

$000's $000's

Profit after income tax 26,393 19,888
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 419 357
Fair value movernent of financial assets (2,659} (2,765)
Loss on sale of plant and equipment 4 47
Interest expense 5,960 6,187
Movement in trade and other payables 14,989 (151)
Movement in trade and other receivables (3,954} (27,770)
Movement in net outstanding claims {9,332) (5,690)
Movement in unearned premiums 9,287 22918
Movement in deferred insurance costs 2,965 (3,059)
Movement in tax balances 2,525 7777
Movement in Head Office account 5,478 1,589
Net cash flows from operating activities 52,175 19,328
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11. INVESTMENTS

2013 2012

$000’s $000's
Fixed interest rate
Short term money 25,000 -
Government bonds 7,374 15,630
Corporate bonds 38,912 29,004

71,286 44 634
Floating interest rate
Short term money 174,630 150,091
Fixed interest trusts 105,474 77,219

280,104 227,310

Total investments 351,390 271,944
Amounts maturing within 12 months 244,248 204,204
Amounts maturing in greater than 12 months 107,142 67,740
Total investments 351,390 271,944

Valuation of investments
All investments are initially recorded at fair value and are subsequently remeasured fo fair value at each

reporting date.

Short-term money

Term depesits are valued at par plus accrued interest and are classified as level 1. Other short-term money
(bank bills, certificates of deposit, treasury bills and other short-term instruments) are priced using interest rates
and yield curves abservable at commonly quoted intervals.

Fixed and floating rate honds

Bonds which are traded in active markets and have guoted prices from external data providers are classified as
level 1. Bonds which are not traded in active markets are priced using broker quotes, using comparable prices
for similar instruments or using pricing technigues set by local regulators or exchanges.

Fair value hierarchy
The invesiments of the Branch are disclosed in the table below using a fair value hisrarchy which reflects the

significance of inputs into the determination of fair value as follows:

Level 1. Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for the same instruments.

Level 2: Valuation is based on guoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are based on cbservable market data, for example, consensus price
using broker quotes and valuation model with observable inputs.

Level 3: Valuation techniques are applied for which any significant input is nof based on observable market data.
There were no level 3 investments.

2013 2012
LEVEL1 LEVEL2 TOTAL LEVEL1 LEVEL2 TOTAL
S000's  $000’s  $000's  S000’s  $000’s $000’s
Short-term money 25,128 174,502 199,630 545 149,546 150,001
Government 7,374 - 7374 15,630 - 15,630

bonds
Corporate bonds 144,386 144,386 106,223 106,223

Total investments 32,502 318,888 351,390 16,175 255,769 271,944
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12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
$000's $000's

Trade debtars
Premium receivable’ 66,585 63,416
Reinsurance and other recoveries’ 16,916 13,256
Unclosed premium 28,778 23,605
112,277 100,177
Amounts due from related entities (Note 26) 980 11,013
Other debtors 9,935 8,691
Prepayments 749 106
‘Trade and other receivables 123,941 119,987
Recelvable within 12 months 123,941 119,987
Receivable in greater than 12 months - -
Trade and other receivables 123,841 119,087

' Net of a provision for impairment

(A) Provision for general impairment

REINSURANCE AND

PREMIUM RECEIVABLE OTHER RECOVERIES
2013 2012 2013 2012
$000°s $000°s $000°s $000°s
Al 1 January 106 108 24 -
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 39 - (24) 24
At 31 December 145 108 - 24

(B) Fair vaiue

Due to the short ierm nature of these receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value.

(C) Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivables. No
receivables are pledged by the Branch as collateral for liabilities or contingent iiabilities. Information on the ageing
and credit rating of balances in the table above, where relevant, is included in note 5(C). Note 5 also provides
more information on the risk management policies of the Branch,

13. DEFERRED INSURANCE COSTS

2013 2012

$000’s $000's

Deferred reinsurance premium 16,739 21,772
Deferred commission 17,664 16,700
Deferred acauisition costs 9,106 8,002
Deferred insurance costs 43,509 46,474
To be expensed within 12 months 41,797 44,490
To be expensed in greater than 12 months 1,712 1,984
Deferred insurance costs 43,509 46,474

PWE
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DEFERRED DEFERRED
REINSURANCE REFERRED ACQUISITION
PREMIUM COMMISSION COSTS
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$000°s 5000's $000's $000's $000's $000's
At 1 January 21,772 20,080 16,700 15,739 8,002 7,596
Costs deferred in financial year 15,722 20,546 16,742 15,668 9,106 7,586
Amortisation of costs deferred in
previous financial years (20,755) (18,854) (15,778) (14,707) (8,002) {7,180)
At 31 December 16,739 21,772 17,664 16,700 9,108 8,002
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
ITIOFFICE
EQUIPMENT/
LEASEHOLD FIXTURES &
2013 IMPROVEMENTS FITTINGS TOTAL
$000's $000's $000's
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 1,462 3,176 4,638
Additions 32 767 799
Disposals - (115) {115}
At 31 December 1,494 3,828 5322
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January (661) (2,201} {2,862)
Disposals 1 110 111
Depreciation charge for the year {96) (323) {419)
At 31 December (756) (2,414) {3,170}
Carrying amount
At 31 December 738 1,414 2,152
IT/IOFFICE
EQUIPMENT/
LEASEHOLD FIXTURES &
2012 IMPROVEMENTS FITTINGS TOTAL
$000’s $000's $000's
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 1,400 3,322 4,722
Additions 102 183 285
Disposals (40) (329) (369}
At 31 December 1,462 3,176 4,638
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January {569) (2,211) {2,780)
Disposals g 265 274
Depreciation charge for the year {101} (255) {356)
At 31 December {861) (2,201) (2,862)
Garrying amount
At 31 December 801 975 1,776
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

15. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

2013 2012
$000's $000's
Deferred tax assets 320 1,278
Deferred tax liabilities {7,477) {6,524)
{7,157) {5,246)
{A) Deferred tax assets
{i) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
2013 2012
$000's $000's
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Provision for impairment 41 37
Employee benefits 272 1,156
Qther 7 85
Deferred tax assets before set-off 320 1,278
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities (320} (1.278)
Deferred tax assets before set off analysed as follows:
Recoverable within 12 months 320 1,278
Recoverable in greater than 12 months - -
320 1,278
{il Movements
2013 2012
$000's $000's
At 1 January 1,278 4,821
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (958) (2,6886)
Losses transferred to QBE LM! - (857)
At 31 December 320 1,278
(B} Deferred tax liabilities
(i}  The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
2013 2012
$000's $000's
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Insurance provisions {7,477} (6,524)
Deferred tax liabilities before sef-off (7,477) (6,524)
Set-off of deferred tax assets 320 1,278
(7,157) (5,246)
Deferred tax liabilities before set off analysed as follows:
Payable within 12 months (7,477) (6,524)
Payable in greater than 12 months - -
(7,477) (6,524)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

(iy Movements:

2013 2012
$000’s $000°'s
At 1 January {6,524) {6,145)
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (953) (379)
At 31 December (7,477) (6,524)
16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2013 2012
$000's $000's
Trade payables 5,718 3,625
Amounts due to related entities (Note 26) 102,033 102,717
OCther payables 27,374 15,638
Accrued expenses 6,811 4,967
Trade and other payables 141,936 126,947
Payable within 12 months 39,936 24,847
Payable in greater than 12 months 102,000 102,000
Trade and other payables 141,836 126,947
17. UNEARNED PREMIUM
(A) Unearned premium
2013 2012
$000’s $000's
At 1 January 168,403 145,485
Deferral of premium on contracts written in the peried 170,247 160,738
Earning of premium written in previous periods {160,860) (137,820}
At 31 December 177,790 168,403
To be earned within 12 months 172,003 161,907
To be earned in greater than 12 months 5,787 6,496
Unearned premium 177,790 168,403

(B} Liability adequacy test

The probability of adequacy applied in the liability adequacy test differs from the probability of adequacy
adopted in determining the outstanding claims provision. The reason for the difference is that the former is a
benchmark used only to fest the sufficiency of net premium liabilities whereas the latter is a measure of the
adequacy of the outstanding claims provision actually carried by the Branch.

NZ IFRS requires the inclusion of a risk margin in insurance liabilities, but does not prescribe a minimum level of
margin. Whilst there [s established practice in the calculation of the probability of adequacy of the outstanding
claims provisions, no such guidance exists in respect of the level of risk margin to be used in determining the
adeqguacy of net premium liabilities. The Branch has adopted a risk margin of 7.8% (2012; 11.5%) for premium
liabilities, for the purposes of the liability adequacy test to produce a 75% probability of adequacy in respect of
total insurance liabilities. The 75% basis is a recognised industry benchmark in New Zealand and Australia.

The application of the liability adequacy fest in respect of net premium liabilities identified a surplus at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

{A} Net outstanding claims

2013 2012
$000’s $000's
Gross outstanding claims provision 585,226 796,883
Risk margin 23,144 23,579
QOutstanding claims 608,370 820,462
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims (490,777) (693,536)
Net outstanding claims provision 117,593 126,926
Analysed as follows:
Net undiscounted central estimate 100,110 108,235
Discount {5,661) (5,888)
Net central estimate 94,449 103,347
Risk margin 23,144 23,579
Net outstanding claims provision 117,593 126,926
Gross outstanding claims 635,627 847,077
Claim settlement accrual 4,417 8,533
640,044 855,610
Discount o present value (31,674) {35,148)
Gross outstanding claims provision 608,370 820,462
Less than 12 months 227,065 247,780
Greater than 12 months 381,305 572682
Gross outstanding claims provision 608,370 820,462
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims 516,790 722,806
Discount fo present value (26,013) {29,270)
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims 480,777 693,536
Less than 12 months 173,787 202 512
Greater than 12 months 316,980 491,024
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims 490,777 693,536
(B) Maturity profile of net ocutstanding claims
The expected maturity of the Branch’s discounted net outstanding claims provision is analysed below.
1 YEAR
OR 1TO 2 2TO3 3TO 4 4TOS OVER §
1.ESS YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS TOTAL
At 31 December 2013 $000°s 53,268 28,999 18,575 7,895 4,396 4459 117,593
At 31 December 2012 3000's 47,728 26,320 18,601 12,585 7,705 13,987 126,926

The weighted average term to settlement of the claims provision is included in note 4(A)(iv).
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(C) Risk margin

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

The process used to determine the risk margin Is explained in note 4(A)(iil) and details of the risk-free discount
rates adopted are set out in note 4(A)(iv).

The risk margin included in net outstanding claims is 24,5% (2012: 22.8%) of the central estimate. The increase
in the risk margin reflects increased uncertainty in the net discounted central estimate at 31 December 2013,
Assumptions regarding uncertainty for each business class were applied to the central estimates, allowing for
diversification in order to arrive at an overall position, which is intended to have a probability of adequacy
greater than 80% ( 2012 greater than 80%).

(D) Reconciliation of movement in discounted cutstanding claims provision

2013 2012

GROSS  REINSURANCE NET GROSS  REINSURANCE NET

$000's $000’s $000°s $000's 5000's $000's
At 1 January 820,462 {693,536) 126,926 857,605 (724,989) 132,616
increase in net claims incurred
in current accident year 91,880 {27,779) 64,101 105,669 (42,628 63,041
Movement in prior year claims 22,083 (29,974)  (7,891) 187,756 (204,260)  (16,504)
provision
Incurred claims recognised in
profit or loss 113,963 (67,763} 56,210 293,425 (246,888) 46,537
Prior year adjustment - risk (21,065) 21,065 ) : )
margin
Claim (payments) recoveries
during the year {304,990) 239,447  (65,543) (330,568) 278,341  (52,227)
At 31 December 608,370 (490,777) 117,593 820,462 {693,536) 126,926

*In the prior year a portion of the risk margin was allocated to reinsurance.

@]}34
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(E) Ciaims development — undiscounted net central estimate

Prior 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2043 TOTAL

Years $000's  $000’s  $0G0's  §000's  $000's  $000's  5000's $000's  $000°'s  §000's  $000°s
Not clafms cost = contral ostimatn:
Al ond of acelganl yoar 43,462 48,245 £B,4B5 61,424 53,337 40,621 50,808 52 500 44,970 53734 518,784
One year laler 48,452 53,482 52,535 48,484 53,478 41,159 56,241 54,418 40,5954 - 449,169
Two years fitor 45,993 45,072 89,755 47,503 58,081 40,575 53,503 93,258 - - 404,744
Threo yoars fater 44,255 47 465 €0,672 40128 B0,865 40,479 55,668 - 359,332
Four yaars tater 44,066 46,483 60,318 46,851 59,792 42,711 - - 303,321
Five years later 44,077 47,503 58,802 48,580 60,974 - - 260,944
Sex years ster 45,589 48,601 58,252 56,202 . - - - 203,644
Saoven years later 45,623 48,806 58,991 - - - - §53,420
Erght years laler 45,979 46,235 - - - . - 94,214
Nina years fater 46,180 - - - - - - - 485,180
Currant canlrat estimate cost for {no Tan 46190 B35 SAGBY 50202 60574 42741 55660 53250 40854 53734 10318
mosi recent accidont yoars
Cumnulptive net clamms paymonts to dala (45,366) (48,023) {57,761} {47.727) (55.829) {33,354) (45,654) (41,742) (25,595) (18,400} (420,450)
Net undiscounted coniral estimalo 6,225 a24 212 1,230 2475 5,146 9,357 9,014 11,517 15,359 35,334 95,893
Not und\sc;:unted canuél .esl.lmalo a3 . - o T - .
Docomber 2013 95,693
Discount o prasant valuo “ w6 6 @ es te  @m @) () @7 (0 @oa) (886N
Risk margin 1827 17% L) a2 827 1,322 2,381 2,328 2,027 3,872 7.833 23,144
Claims selifemant cosls 177 21 [ 42 17 245 444 438 561 781 1,605 4417
Not outstanding cfalms at 3% Decembor 2013 117,582
Not cantrat ostimate dovelopmaent
nerente (dacrease) In the year - current 656 213 (571 739 514 1082 2,232 2465  [(467)  (ADI6) 53734 55,768

year minus prigs year

The central estimate claims development table is presented net of reinsurance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

19. SOLVENCY

On 4 March 2013 the Branch was granted a full licence under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010
(“the Act’). As the Branch is a branch of an overseas insurer it is exempt under the Act from complying with the
Solvency Standard for Non-Life Insurance Business subject to the condition that the Company meets the
equivalent Australian non-Life solvency standard.

The table below discloses the solvency coverage for QBE Insurance (International) Limited which includes the
Branch as calculated under the Australian APRA requirements,

2013 2012

AUD$000's AUDS000’s

APRA prescribed capital amount 218,745 180,303
Capital surplus 212,136 230,633
Solvency coverage 1.97 2.28

20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND HEAD OFFICE ACCOUNT

The Branch's objective when managing capital is to meet the solvency requirements and financial strength
rating of the parent company.

Local management monitor key financial parameters to safeguard the Branch’s ability to continue as a going
concern and provide financial returns for the shareholder. The capital of the Branch comprises the Head Office
account which consists of retained earnings and current account transactions between the Branch and Head
Office. Current transactions with the Head Office include reinsurance, head office charges and other expenses
which are settled on a regular basis.

21. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Compensation of key management personnel employed by the New Zealand Branch for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 is set out below,

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Short Term employee benefits 3,235 2,083
Post employment benefits 147 141
Other long term employment benefits 11 10
Share based payments 204 140
22.  REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Audit and assurance services 232 231
Other services 37 37
269 268




QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Branch had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013 (2612: nil).

24. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
The Branch had no commitments for expenditure as at 31 December 2013 (2012: nil).

25, OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

2013 2012
$000's $000's
Payable:
Nat later than one year 2,126 2,302
Later than one year but less than five years 2,046 3,780
Later than five years 75 195
Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases 4,247 6,277

26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i The Branch’s ultimate parent and controlling party is QBE Insurance Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Australia. All trading balances owed tof{from) related parties are settled on a regular
hasis. Atthe end of the reporting period the Branch had the following related party balances:

2013 2012
$°000 $'000
Related party Description
QBE Insurance Group Limited (2) Mandatory convertible notes 102,000 102,000
QBE Equator Re Reinsurance {432) (10,048)
QBE Insurance {Australia) Limited Reinsurance 33 546
QBE Lenders Mortgage Insurance Ltd  Reinsurance (13) {63)
QBE Management {Ireland) Limited Reinsurance {535) {833)
101,053 81,704
The outstanding related party balances are reported as:
Trade and other payables 102,033 102,646
Trade and other receivables (980) (10,942)

(a) This is a mandatory convertible notes issue of $102 million subscribed for by the ulfimate parent. interest
is calculated at the B8 month New Zealand Bank Bills Bloomberg rate plus a margin. The notes convert to
ordinary shares on the 40" anniversary from the date of issue, 22 December 2008. The fair value of the

MCN's is $102 million.
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
New Zealand Branch

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

The following were carried out with related parties:

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Transactions with QBE Insurance Group Limited
Interest on related party loan 5,960 5,187
Transactions with QBE Insurance (International) Limited
Reinsurance expense less recoveries 102,186 92,412
Administration and management fees 3,171 3,861
Reimbursement of transactions with related parties 1,260 449
Transactions with other related parties of ultimate parent
Reinsurance expense less recoveries 35,495 90,572
Tax {receivable)/payable through group offsets - (857}

27.

CREDIT RATING

Standard & Poors' Rating Services affirmed the financial strength of A+ with a negative outlook for QBE

ins

28.

urance (International) Limited, New Zealand Branch, on 12 December 2013,

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

There is, at the date of this report, no matter or circumstance that has arisen since 31 December 2013 that has

sig
(1

(ii)
(it)

nificantly affected, or may significantly affect:

the Branch's operations in future financial years; or
the results of those operations in future financial years; or
the Branch's state of affairs in future financial year.






\ QBE INSURANCE (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED
ABN T8 003 191 035
‘, - Actuarial, Risk and Govemance

85 Harrington Street

Sydney NSW 2000
Q BE Postal Address
GPO Box 4229

Sydney NSW 2001
DX 10333 S.SE.

22 April 2014 Telephone: (02) 6275 9999
Facsimile: (02) B275 9503
Mr Terry Lawrence
Chief Financial Officer |
QBE New Zealand
Level 9, AMP Centre
29 Customs Street West
Auckland

Dear Mr Lawrence
Re: QBE New Zealand Operations Actuarial Report at 31 December 2013.

Section 77 and 78 of the Insurance {Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 requires a licensed insurer to
ensure that actuarial information included in the financial statements has been reviewed by the
insurer's Appointed Actuary. As the Appointed Actuary for QBE New Zealand (QBENZ), |, Benoit
Laganiere have conducted this review for QBENZ's financial statements for the period ending 31
December 2013.

This review involved ascertaining whether actuarial information used in the preparation of the
financial statements has applied appropriately. No limitations were placed on me in conducting this
review, and all information requested has been made available to me.

For the purposes of this review, actuarial information includes
 Qutstanding claims liabilities

Premium Liabilities

Application of the Liability Adequacy Test

Reinsurance and other recovery assets

Deferred Acquisition Costs.

| am an employee of QBE Management Services (QAMS), which is a related company to QBENZ in
that both companies are fully owned by QBE Insurance Group. In addition to this, | held equity
positions (current or deferred) in QBE Insurance Group securities at the date of this report. This
holding is an immaterial proportion of the total shares issued by QBE.

From my review, it is my opinion that

» the actuarial information included in QBENZ's financial statements has been appropriately
included;

e the actuarial information used to prepare the financial statements has been appropriately
used:; and

 jt is understood that QBENZ was granted exemption from complying with the RBNZ
solvency standards for non-life insurance business under Section 59 of the Insurance Act.
QBENZ is currently a branch of QBE Insurance (International) Limited (QIl) which is an
APRA regulated entity. QBENZ is therefore dependent on Qll's capital surplus to remain
solvent under most adverse scenarios developed as part of Qll's capital management plan.

Yours faithfully

i, o

Benoit Laganiere
New Zealand Appointed Actuary of QBE Insurance (International) Limited

Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Australia

Page 1
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This financial report includes separate financial stalements for QBE Insurance {International) Limited (the

company) as an individual entity. All amounts in the financial report are presented in Australian dollars unless
olherwise stated.

QBE Insurance {International} Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia
its registered office is:

Level 27, 8-12 Chifley Square
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia

A description of the nature of the company’s operations and its principal activities is included in the directors'
report on pages 1 to 4, which is not part of this financial report.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on p February 2014. The directors have the power
to amend and reissue the financial report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Your directors present their report on QBE Insurance (International) Limited {the company) as at 31 December
2013 and for the year then ended.

Directors

The following directors held office during the financial year and up to the date of this report;

S P Burns {appointed on 14 February 2014)

D L Fried (appointed on 12 April 2013)

G J Gilbert

The Hon. N F H Greiner

A G McGrath

J D Neal (resigned on 14 February 2014)

D A M Ramsay (resigned on 14 February 2014)
J E Skinner

V J Walter

Principal activity

The principal activity of the company continued to be underwriting general insurance and reinsurance nsks,
There were no significant changes to the principal activity during the year.

Results and review of operations

The results of the company for the year were as follows:

2013 20142
M $M
Gross written premium 493.0 4299
Gross earned premium 476.9 405 5
Net earned premium 288.7 229.4
Net claims incurred {115.6} (90.8)
Net commission {55.8) (41.1)
Underwriting and other expenses {66.1) {56.4)
Net underwriting result 51.2 411
Net investment income on policyholders’ funds 8.8 2.0
Insurance profit 60.0 43.1
Net investment income on shareholder's funds 12.5 B.7
Profit before income tax 72.5 49.8
Income tax expense {16.5) {14.9)
Net profit after tax 56.0 34.9

The net combined operating ratio slightly increased from 82.1% in 2012 to 82.4% in 2013; however the ratio is
aligned with prior year.

Gross written premium increased by 14.7% from $429.9 million in 2012 to $493.0 million in 2013, due to
increased growth business in Singapore and new business derived in New Zealand.



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Controlling entities

The entity is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australis. The parent is QBE Holdings

(AAP) Pty Limited, incorporated in Australia, and the ultimate parent entity is QBE Insurance Group Limited,
incorporated in Australia.

The controlling entity's registered office is at Level 27, 8-12 Chifley Square, Sydney, NSW 2000 Australia.

Employee numbers

Al the reporting date the company employed 475 persons {2012: 521).

Dividends

The dividends paid or proposed during the year totalled $5.3 million {2012: $4.9 million).

Options

There were no options granted by the company during the year (2012: nil)

Likely developmenis

Information on likely developments in the company's operations in future financial years and the expected
results of those operations has not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to

result in unreasonable prejudice to the company

Significant changes

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the company during the financial year

Events subsequent to balance sheet dale

At the date of this report, no matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2013 that has significantly
affected, or may significantly aiffect;

{i} the company's operations in future financial years;,
(i) the results of those operations in future financial years; or
{iii) the company's state of alfairs in future financial years.

Environmental requlation

The company's operations are not subject {o any significant environmenlal regulation under either
Commonwealth or Stale legislation,



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Directors' benefils

No difectcr of the company has received or become entitled to receiv: a benefit (other than a remuneration
benefit) by reason of a contract made or proposed by the company or 2 related entity with a director or with a
firm of which the director is @ member or with an entity in which the direcior has a substantial financial interest.

Indemnification and insurance

During the year, a related company paid insurance premiums in respzct of a contract insuring directors and
officers of the company. The officers of the company covered by the nsurance contract include the directors
listed on page 1 and the company secretaries, P E Barnes, P Smiles and AR Croy. In accordance with normal
commercial practice, disclosure of the total amount of premium payatle under, and the nature of liabilities
covered by, the insurance contract are prohibited by a confidentiality classe in the contract,

Auditor's independence declaration

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under sedion 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
is set out on page 4.

Rounding of amounts
The company is of a kind referred to in the ASIC class order 98/100, daed 10 July 1998 (as amended by class
order 04/667 dated 15 July 2004) relating to the "rounding off” of amaints in the directors' report. Amounts in

the directors' report have been rounded off in accordance with that cass order to the nearest one hundred
thousand dollars or, in certain cases, to the nearest thousand dollars in sccordance with that class order.

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with Section327 of the Corporations Act 2007

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

BT o RO . v, T

Sydney
¥ February 2014




pwec

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of QBE Insurance (International) Limited for the year ended 31 December
2013, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

b)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

P

J.W. Bennett Sydney

Partner O February 2014
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2013

NOTE 2013 2012
SM M
Gross written premium 493.0 429.9
Unearned premium movement {16.1) {24.4)
Gross earned premium revenue 5(A) 478.9 405.5
Qutward reinsurance premium (173.0) (170.4)
Deferred reinsurance premium movement {15.2) (6.7)
Outward reinsurance premiuni expense 5(B} (188.2) (176.1)
Net earned premium 288.7 2284
Gross claims incurred 5(8) {194.8) {285.2)
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 5(A) 79.2 204.4
Net claims incurred 7(A) {115.6) (90.8)
Gross commission expense 5(B) (69.2) (61.3)
Reinsurance commission revenue 5(A) 13.4 20.2
Net commission {55.8) (41 1}
Other acquisition costs 5(B) {21.2) (17.6)
Underwriting and other expenses 5(B) (44.9) (38.8)
Underwriting result 51.2 41.1
Investment and other income - policyholders’ funds 6 9.0 22
Investment expenses - policyholders’ funds 5] (0.2} (6.2)
Insurance profit 60.0 43.1
Investment income and other income — shareholder's funds 8 12.8 69
Investment expenses — shareholder's funds G {0.3) (0.2)
Profit before income tax 72.5 488
Income lax expense 8(A) (18.5) {14.9)
Proftt after income tax 56.0 34.9
Other comprehensive income
Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Net movement in foreign currency kranslation reserve 42.8 8.5
Other comprehensive income after income tax 42.8 85
Total comprehensive income after income tax 98.8 434
Profit after income tax altributable to:
Ordinary equity holder of the company 56.0 34.9
56.0 34.9
Total comprehensive income after tax attributable to:
Ordinary equity holder of the company 98.8 434
98.8 43.4

The statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL} LIMITED

BAILANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2013

NOTE 2013 2012
M 5M
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9 61.6 82.5
investments 10 715.6 489 2
Derivalive financial instruments 11 0.8 0.1
Trade and other receivables 12 294.6 262 4
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims  20(A) 498.6 582.9
Current tax asset - 0.2
Deferred insurance costs 13 81.9 78.5
Property, plant and equipment 14 3.8 33
Deferred tax assets 15 4.6 4.8
Investments in controlled entities 16 72.5 727
intangible assets 17 18.1 16.5
Total assets 1,752.1 1,573.9
LIABILITIES
Derivative financial instruments 11 1.7 02
Trade and other payables 18 213.5 137.0
Current tax liabilities 9.8 7.0
Unearned premium 19 280.7 228.8
Outstanding claims 20(A) 751.3 802.9
Provisions 21 2.3 03
Deferred {ax liabilities 15 11,3 88
Total liabilities 1,270.6 1,1851
Net assels 481.5 388.0
EQUITY
Share capital 22(A) 230.0 230G
Reserves 22(0) 47.2 4.4
Retained profits 22(Dy) 113.1 62.4
Sharehelder's funds 390.3 296.8
Mandatory convertible securities 23 91.2 91.2
Total equity 481.5 388.0

The balance sheet should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes.



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2013

MANDATORY
SHARE  CONVERTIBLE RETAINED TOTAL

CAPITAL SECURITIES RESERVES PROFITS EQUITY
2013 §M Sm 5M SM SM
At 1 January 230.0 91.2 4.4 62.4 388.0
Profit after income tax - - - 56.0 56.0
Movement in foreign currency translation
reserve - - 42.8 - 42.8
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 42,8 56.0 98.8
Transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners
Dividends paid on ordinary shares - - - {5.3) {5.3)
At 31 December 230.0 91,2 47.2 113.1 481.5

MANDATORY
SHARE CONVERTIBLE RETAINED TOTAL

CAPITAL SECURITIES RESERVES PROFITS EQUITY
2012 ] SM SM sMm M
At 1 January 230.0 81.2 (4.1 32.4 3495
Profit after income tax - - - 34.9 349
Movement in foreign currency translation
reserve - - 85 - 85
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 85 34.9 43.4
Transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners
Dividends paid on ordinary shares - - - (4.9) (4.9)
At 31 December 230.0 91.2 4.4 G2.4 368.0

The staternent of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
NOTE SM M
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premium received 403.8 413.1
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 209.8 235.3
Outwards reinsurance paid (184.4) {285.6)
Claims paid (337.2) (339.3)
Insurance costs paid {80.1) (80.2)
Other underwriting costs (22.3) (44 .9)
interest received 7.6 G.4
Dividends received 13.0 15
Retirement benefit (received)/paid (0.3) 0.1
Other operating income 1.2 16
Other operating payments {0.1) (0.1
Income taxes paid {6.2) (5.4)
Net receipts from related entities 35.3 118.1
Net cash flows from operating activities 9(A) 40.2 40.6
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on sale of investments 863.9 - 1,0451
Proceeds on disposal of investments in controlled
i 0.8 2.7
entities
Payments for purchase of investments (926.3) (1.052.3)
Paymenis for purchase of investments in controlled .
entities (0.6) (2.9)
Payment for purchase of intangibles (1.6) -
Payments for purchase of plant and equipment (1.0} {1.2)
Net cash flows from investing activities (64.8) (8.6)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid {5.3) {4.9)
Net cash flows from financing activities {5.3) {4.9)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (29.9) 27 1
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
financial year 82.5 53.3
Efiect of exchange rale changes 9.0 2.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial
year 9 61.6 82.5

The statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES

Thg _principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(A) Basis of preparation

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards,
and interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporation Act 2001. The
company is a for-profit entity for the purpese of preparing the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These
policies are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as set out below.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the company
The company mandatorily adopted the following accounting policies which became effectives for annual

reporting period commencing 1 January 2013. These slandards have introduced new disclosures but did not
materially affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Title

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

AASB 119 Employee Benefils

AASB 127 {revised) Separate Financial Statements

2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13

2011-¢ Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September
2011)

2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure - Offsetting Financial
Assels and Financial Liabilities

2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements
2009-2011 cycle

2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Transition Guidance and Other
Amendments

The company has early adopted AASB 2013-3 Amendments lo AASB136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets. This standard amends the disclosure requirements of AASB 136, as a conseguence
of the issuance of IFRS 13.

{ii)  Statement of compliance
The financial report complies with [nternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
[nternational Accounting Standards Board and Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the AASB.

{(iii} Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
exceplions noled in the financial report, with the principal exceptions being the measurement of financial assels
at fair value and the measurement of the outslanding claims liabilily and related reinsurance and other
recoveries at the present value. Refer to nole 3.

{(iv) Critical accounting judgement and estimates

The preparation of the financial slatements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates [{ also
requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the company's accounting policies. The
areas invoiving a higher degree of judgement or complexily, or areas where assumptions or estimates are
significant, are disclosed in note 3,

10



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B) Principles of consolidation

These financial statements are separate financial statements and the company is exempted from preparing
consolidated financial statements under AASB 127: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The
ultimate parent company, QBE Insurance Group Limited (incorporated in Auslralia) produces consolidated
financiat statements in accordance with IFRS for public use, which can be obtained at wvaw gbe com or Level
27, 8-12 Chifley Square, Sydney, NSW 2000 Australia.

investments in controlled entities are held at cost and a list of controlled entities is set oul in note 16. Dividends

received from controlled entities are recognised in profit or loss, rather than being deducted from the carrying
amount of these investments.

(C) Premium revenue

Premium comprises amounts charged to policyholders, excluding taxes collected on behalf of third parties. The
earned portion of premium received and receivable, including unclosed business, is recognised as revenue.

Premium on unclosed business is brought to account based upon the pattern of booking of renewals and new
business.

(D}  Unearned premium

Unearned premium is calcuiated based on e term of the risk and in accordance with the expected pattern of
the incidence of risks underwritten, using either the daily pro-rata method or the 24ths method, adjusted where
appropriate for seasonality,

At each balance sheet date, the adequacy of the unearned premium liability is assessed on a net of reinsurance
basis against the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to potential future claims in respect of
the relevant insurance contracts, plus an additional risk margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty of the central
estimate. The assessment is carried out at the regional business segment level, being a portfolio of contracls
subject to broadly similar risks and which are managed together as a single portfolio. If the present value of the
expected future cash flows relating to future claims plus the additional risk margin exceeds the unearned
premium liability less related intangible assets and related deferred acquisition costs, then the unearned

premium liability is deemed to be deficient. The resulting deficiency is recognised immediately through the profit
or loss

(E) Outward reinsurance

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense from the attachment dale over the period of
indemnity of the reinsurance contract in accordance with the expected pattern of the incidence of risk.
Accordingly, a portion of cutward reinsurance premium is treated as a prepayment at the balance sheet date

(F) Claims

The provision for outstanding claims is measured as the central estimate of the present value of expected fulure
claims payments plus a risk margin The expected future payments include those in relation to claims reported
but not yet paid; claims incurred but not reported {(IBNR); claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER); and

estimated claims handling costs. Claims expense represents claim payments adjusted for the movement in the
outstanding claims fability,

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using a risk-free rate.

A risk margin is applied lo the central estimate, net of reinsurance and other recoveries, to reflect the inherent
uncertainty in the central estimate.

{G) Reinsurance and other recoveries

Reinsurance and other recoveries on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid, IBNR and IBNER are
recognised as revenue.

Amounts recoverable are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment of ouistanding claims. Recoveries

are measured as the present value of the expected future receipts, calculated on the same basis as the
provision for outstanding claims.

11



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{(H}  Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs (which include commission costs) are the costs associated with obtaining and recording
insurance contracts. Acquisition costs are capitalised when they relate to the acquisition of new business or the
renewal of existing business and are referred to as deferred acquisition costs. These costs are amortised on the
same basis as the earning pattern of the premium, over the period of the insurance contract to which they
relate. At the reporting date, deferred acquisition costs represent the capitalised costs that refate to the
unearned premium. Acquisition costs are deferred in recognition of their fulure benefit and are measured at the
lower of cost and recoverable amount.

{n Investment income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Dividends are recognised when ihe right
to receive payment is established. Investment income includes realised and unrealised gains or losses on
financial assets which are reported on a combined basis as fair value gains or losses on financial assets.

(4) Taxation

The income tax expense or revenue for the pericd is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities aitributable to tempoerary differences and unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calcufated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporiing period. Management periodically evaluales positions taken in tax returns with respect lo
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts i the financial statements Deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognilion of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liahility, in a transaction other than a business combination,
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacled or substanlially enacled by the end of the
reporting period and is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liabilily is settied.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that fulure taxable amounts will be available to ufilise those temporary differences and losses

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in controlted entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation autherity. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offse! where the enlity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The company has implemented the tax consolidation legislation. All entities in the tax-consolidated group
continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts, These tax amounts are measured as if each
entity continues to be a stand-alone lax payer in its own right. Details of the tax funding and tax sharing
agreemenis are included in note 8(B) to the financial statements.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other comprehensive incame or directly in eguity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, as appropriate.

12



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(K) insurance profit

Insurance profit is derived by adding investment income on assets hacking pelicyholders' funds to the
underwriting result,

(L) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank and on hand and deposits at call which are readily convertible
to cash on hand and which are used for operational cash requirements.

(M) investments

Investments comprise interest-bearing assets, equities and equily derivative financial instruments. Investments
are designated as fair value through prefit or loss on initial recognition. They are intially recorded at fair value,
being the cost of acquisition excluding transaction costs, and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each
reporting date. The policy of management is to designate a group of financial assets or financial liabilities as fair
value through profit or loss when that group is both managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value

basis for both internal and external reporting in accordance with the company's documented investment
strategy.

For securities traded in an aclive market, the fair value is determined by reference to published closing bid price
quotations. For securities that are not traded and securities that are traded in a market that is not active, fair
value is determined using valuation techniques generally by reference to the fair value of recent arm’s length
transactions involving the same or similar instruments. Fixed and floating rate securities are valued using

independently sourced valuations. Discounted cash flow analysis or option pricing models are used for a small
number of investments.

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery of the asset within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (‘regular way" transactions) are recognised at trade date, being lhe date on
which the company comimits to buy or sell the asset. Investments are derecognised when the right to receive
future cash flows from the asset has expired or has been transferred and the company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(N}  Derivative financial instruments

The company is subject to currency, interest rate, price, credit and hquidity risks. Derivative financial instruments
{derivatives) may be used to manage these risks

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value, being generally the transaction price on the dale a derivative
contract is entered into, and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and the nature
of the ilem being hedged. Derivatives which are not part of a hedging relationship are valued at fair value
through profit or loss.

For derivatives traded in an active market, the fair value of derivatives presented as assels are determined by
reference to published closing bid price quotations and the fair value of derivatives presenied as liabilities is
determined by reference to published closing ask price quolations. For derivatives that are nol traded or which

are traded in a market that is not sufficienlly active, fair value is determined using generally accepted valuation
techniques.

(O} Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised at amount receivable less a provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to coliect all
amounts due according to the original term of the receivable. Any increase or decrease in the provision for
impairment is recognised in profit or loss within underwriting expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the provision for impairment account. Subsequent recoveries of amounis previously written
off are credited against underwriting expenses in profit or loss.

13



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(P) Property, plant and equipment
All plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Leasehold improvements, office equipment (including IT hardware and software), fixtures and fittings and motor
vehicies are depreciated using the straight line method over the estimated useful life to the company of each
class of asset. Eslimated useful lives are between three and 10 years for all classes.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is grealer
than its estimated recoverable amount. Refer note 1{R).

(Q) Intangible assets

(B Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the company's share of the net
identifiable assets acquired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash generating
units, or groups of cash generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. For this purpose, the cash generating unit, or group of units, is determined principally by reference
to how goodwill is monitored by management. The recoverability of the goodwill is tested annually for
impairment or more frequently when changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised as the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cosis o sell and its
value in use

(il Identifiable intangible assets

Identifiable inlangible assels are measured at cost Those wilh a finite useful life are amortised over their
estimated useful life in accordance with the pattern of expected benefit. Estimated useful lives are between
three and 21 years |dentifiable intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation but
are tested for impairment annually or more often if there is an indication of impairment. Identifiable intangible
assets with a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

(R) impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment or more frequently when changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not he recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thal the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised as the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds ils recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, asseis are grouped in cash generating units
which are the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash fiows Impairment testing of goodwill
is explained in note 1(Q)(i).

{S) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are measured at cost and are settled under standard terms and conditions. Inter-
company payables are measured at cost and are repayable on demand.

14



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(T)  Foreigh currency
{i) Presentation currency

The company's financiat statements are presented in Australian dokiars, being the presentation currency of the
company.

{ii)  Translation of foreign currency transactions and balances

ltems included in the financia) statements of overseas operations are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates {the functional currency). Foreign currency
transactions are transiated into functional currencies at the spot rates of exchange applicable at the dates of the
transactions. At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
transiated al the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Resulting exchange gains and fosses are included in
profit or {oss.

(i) Translation of overseas operations
The results and balance sheets of all overseas operations that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

« assels and liabilities are translated at the closing balance sheet date rates of exchange; and
- income and expenses are translated at cumulative average rates of exchange.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in overseas operations, are recognised
as other comprehensive income and taken to shareholder's equity. When an overseas operation is sold, these
exchange differences are reversed out of the comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

{(iv) Hedging transactions
Derivatives may be used to hedge the foreign exchange risk relating to certain transactions.

{v) Exchange rates
The principal exchange rates affecting the company were.

2013 2012
PROFIT OR BALANCE  PROFITOR BALANCE
LLOSS SHEET LOSS SHEET
NZS/AS 0.850 0.921 0.783 0.787
SGD/AS 0.833 0.887 0.773 0.787
EIAS 1.385 1.641 1.247 1269

(Uy Equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

{V} Mandatory convertible securities
Mandatory convertible notes are classified as equity due to their mandatory conversion nature.

(W) Dividends

Provision 1s made for dividends which are declared, being appropriately authonsed and no longer at the
discretion of the company, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at the balance sheet
date.



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{X) Employee benefits
{i) Superannuation
The company participates in a number of superannuation plans and contributes to these plans in accordance

with plan rules and actuarial recommendations, which are designed to ensure that each plan's funding provides
sufficient assets to meet its liahilities.

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays a fixed contribution
into a fund during the course of employment and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assels to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. For defined contribution plans, contributions are expensed as incurred.

(ii) Share based payment

The employees of the company participate in an equity settled, share based compensation plan of QBE
Insurance Group Limited. For all other oplions and conditional righls, the fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of those inslruments is recognised as an expense. The total amount o be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the instruments granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. The fair value at grant date of the oplions and
conditional rights is calculated using a binomial model. The fair valug of each instrement 15 expensed evenly
over the period between grant and vesting dates. Nor-market vesting conditicns are included in assumptions
about the number of instruments that are expected to become exercisable,

Al each balance sheet date, the company revises s estimates of the number of options that are expected to
bacome exercisable due to the achievement of vesting condilions. The company recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates. if any, in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

{ii)  Profit sharing and honus plans
The company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the company's shareholders.

(iv] Termination benefits

Termination benefils are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The company recognises termination
henefits when it has demonstrably committed to either:

« terminating the employment of current employees according o a detailed formal pian without possibility of
withdrawal; or

« providing termination benefils as a result of an offer made o encourage voluntary redundancy

{v] Long service leave

The provision for long service leave is measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made
in respect of services provided by employees up fo the reporting date using the projected unit credit method.
Benefils falling due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date are discounted to present value

(Y) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or 10ss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease,
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(£) Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets (except receivables) are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the

GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense, Receivables
and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is included with other
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or

financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating
cash flow.

QBE Insurance (International) Limited is part of a GST group headed by QBE Management Services Pty
Limited, a related entity.

(AA) Rounding of amounis

The company is of a kind referred 10 in the ASIC class order 88/100 dated 10 July 1998 (as amended by class
order 04/667 dated 15 July 2004) relating to the “rounding off" of amounts in the financial statements. Amounts
in the financial statements have been rounded off in the financial statements to the nearest one hundred
thousand dollars or, in certain cases, to the nearest thousand dollars in accordance with the class order.

(AB) Comparatives

Where apprapriate, prior period comparatives have been reclassified in this financial report to ensure
comparability in the current reporting period. The reclassification was necessary to provide the readers of the
financial report with a greater understanding of the company's financial statements.

17



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2, NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS

TITLE

OPERATIVE DATE

AASB 9

AASE 9 {revised)
2009-11
2010-7

2011-4

2012-3
2013-4

2013-5
2013-9

2013-9
2013-9

2013-9

Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments
Amendments 1o Austral:an Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASE 9 (December
2010}

Amendments lo Australian Accounting Standards to Remove Individual Key
Management Personnel Disclosure Requiremenis

Amendments 10 Ausiralian Accounting Standards — Qffsetting Financial Assels and
Financial Liabiliies

Amendments {0 Ausiralian Acceounting Standards ~ Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Amendments 1o Australia Accounting Standards ~ Investment Enlities

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Conceptual Framework and
Materiality

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Financial Instruments

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards ansing from the Annual
improvements 2010-2012 ¢ycle

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards ansing from the Annual
Improvements 2010-2013 ¢ycle

1 January 2017
1 January 2017
1 January 2047
1 January 2017

1 January 2014

1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014
¥ January 2014

1 Jenuary 2017
1 Janvary 2015

1 January 2015

The Australian accounting standards and amendments detailed in the table above are not mandatory for the
company until the operative dates stated; however, early adoption is permilled except for AASE 2011-4, where

early adoption is not permitted.

The company will apply the standards and amendments detailed above for the reporting pericds beginning on
the operative dates set out above. An initial assessment of the financial impact of the standards and

amendments has been undertaken and they are not expected to have a material impact on the company’s
financial stalements or accounting policies

18



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The company is an international general insurance entity, underwriting most major commercial and personal
lines classes of business through operations in 8 countries. The analysis of the company's gross wrilten
premium and net earned premium from insurance and reinsurance business is shown in note 5(A). The head
office function is located in Australia and exists to support the activities of overseas operations.

In view of the geographic and product diversity, the company has developed a strong, centralised risk
management and policy framework, designed to ensure consistency of approach across a number of
operational activities, subject to the specific requirements of local markets, legislation and regulation. Such
operational activities include underwriting, claims management, actuarial assessment of the claims provisions
and investment management. In addition, assessment of the net outstanding claims provision set at a regional
level is subject to detailed head office review. The probability of adequacy derived from the company's
insurance liabilities is measured by the Appointed Actuary.

Given the centralised approach to many of company's activities and the product and geographic diversification,
sensitivity analyses in respect of critical accounting estimates and judgments are presented at the company
level in order to provide information and analysis which is meaningful, relevant, reliable and comparable year on
year. Sensitivity disclosure at business segment or product level would not provide a meaningful overview given
the complex interrelationships between the variables underpinning the company's operations. The company
makes eslimates and judgments in respect of the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities. These
estimales and judgments are determined by qualified and experienced employees with reference to historical
data and reasoned expectations of future events and are continually updated. The key areas in which critical
estimales and judgments are applied are described as follows:

(A} Outstanding claims provision

The company’s net outstanding claims provision comprises:

- the gross central estimate of expecled future claims payments;

« amounts recoverable from reinsurers based on the gross central estimate;

» a reduction to reflect the discount to present value using risk-free rates of return to reflect the time value of
money, and

- arisk margin that reflects the inherent uncertainty in the net discounted central estimate

A net discounted central estimale is intended to represent the mean of the distribution of the expected fulure
cash flows. As the company requires a higher probability that estimates will be adequate over time, a risk
margin is added to the net discounted central estimate to determine the outstanding claims provision.

{i) Central estimate

The provision for expected future payments includes those in relation to claims reported but not yet paid; claims
incurred but not reported (IBNR); claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER), and estimated claims
handling costs, being the direct expenseas incurred in the selilement of claims.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the company, where more information about the claims is generally available.
Liability and other long tail classes of business, where claims settiement may not happen for many years after
the event giving rise to the claim, typically display greater variability between initial estimates and final
settlement due to delays in reporling claims, uncertainty in respect of court awards and future claims inflation.
Claims in respect of property and other short tail classes are typically reporied and setlled sooner after the claim
event, giving rise to more certainty. The estimation techniques and assumptions used in determining the central
estimate are described below.

The company's process for establishing the central estimate involves extensive consultation with internat and
external actuaries, ciaims managers, underwriters and other senior management. This process includes half
yearly internal claims provisicning committee meetings attended by the senior management and the Appointed
Actuary and delailed review by external actuaries at least annually. The risk management procedures related to
the actuarial function are explained further in note 4



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(A) Outstanding claims provision (continued)
(i) Central estimate (continued)
The determination of the amounts that the company will ultimately pay for claims arising under insurance and

reinsurance contracts involves a number of critical assumptions. Some of the uncertainties impacting these
assumplions are as follows:

« changes in patterns of claims incidence, reporting and payment;

« volatility in the estimation of future costs for long tail insurance classes due to the longer pericd of time that
elapses before a definitive determination of the ultimate claims cost can be made;

« incidence of catastrophic events close to the balance sheet date;

- changes in the legal environment, including the interpretation of liabifity laws and the quantum of damages,
and

« social and economic frends, for example price and wage inflation and interest rates.

The potential impact of changes in key assumptions used in the determination of the central estimate and the
probability of adequacy of the central estimate on the company’s prefit or loss are summarised in note 3{A)(v)

Centrat estimates for each class of business are determined by reference to a variely of estimation techniques,
generally based on a statistical analysis of historical experience which assumes an underlying pattern of claims
development and payment. The final selected central estimates are based on a judgemental consideration of
the results of each method and qualitative information, for example, the class of business, the matunty of the

portfolio and the expected term to settlement of the class Projections are based on both historical experience
and external benchmarks where relevant,

Central estimates are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the
amounts recoverable from reinsurers based on the gross central estimate.

The net central estimate is discounted at risk-free rates of return to reflect the time value of money. Details of
the key assumptions applied in the discounting process are sumimarised in note 3(A)(iv).

{ii}  Assets arising from contracts with reinsurers

Assets arising from contracts with the company's reinsurers are determined using the same methods described
above. In addition, the recoverability of these assets is assessed at each balance sheet date to ensure that the
balances properly reflect the amounts that will ultimately be received, taking inle accoun! counterparty credit risk
and the contractual terms of the reinsurance contract Counterparty and credit risk in relation to reinsurance
assels is considered in note 4(C)(ii).

(iii) Risk margin

Risk margins are determined by management and are held to mitigate the potential for uncertainty in the central
estimate. The determination of the appropriate level of risk margin takes into account similar factors to those
used to determine the central estimate, such as;

o change in the mix of business, in particular the mix of shori tail and tong taif business and the overall weighted
average term fo seitlement;

» prior accident year claims development; and

= the level of uncertainty in the net discounted central estimate due to actuarial estimation, data quality issues,
variability of key discount and inflation assumptions and legislalive uncertainty.

The variability by class of business uses techniques similar to those used in determining the central estimate.
These techniques determine a range of possible oulcomes of ullimate payments and assign a likelihood 1o
outcomes at different levels. These technigques use standard siatistical distributions, and the measure of
variability is referred to as the coefficient of variation. The potential impact of changes in the coefficient of
varialion assumptions on the company’s profit or joss is surnmarised in note 3{A){v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(A) Outstanding claims provision (continued)

(iif})  Risk margin (continued)

The appropriate risk margin for two or more classes of business combined is likely to be less than the sum of
the risk margins for the individual classes. This reflects the benefit of diversification in general insurance. The
statistical measure used to determine diversification is called the correlation. The higher the correlation between
two classes of business, the more likely it is that a negative outcome in one class will correspond 1o a negative
outcome in the other class. For example, high correlation exists between classes of business affected by

court cases involving bodily injury claims such as motor third party liability (CTP), workers' compensation and
public liability.

The risk margin for the company is determined by analysing the variability of each class of business and the
correlation between classes of business and divisions. Correlations are determined for aggregations of classes
of business, where appropriate, at the divisional level. Whilst there are estimation techniques for determining
correlations, they are difficult to apply. The correlations adopted by the company are normally derived from

industry analysis, the company's historical experience and ihe judgement of experienced and qualified
actuaries.

The probabilily of adequacy is a statistical measure of the relative adequacy of the outstanding claims provision
and is derived from the comparison of the risk margin with the net discounted central estimate. Using a range of
outcomes, it allows a determination of the probability of adequacy represented by a risk margin. For example,
a 90% probahility of adequacy indicates that the outstanding claims provision is expected to be adequate nine
times in 10. The probability of adequacy is not of itself an accounting policy or estimate as defined by AASB
108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors The appropriate level of risk margin is
not determined by reference to a fixed probability of adequacy.

(iv) Financial assumptions used to determine the outstanding claims provision

Discount rates

AASB 1023: General Insurance Contracts (AASB 1023) requires that the outstanding claims provision shall be
discounted for the time value of money using risk-free rates that are based on current observable, objective
rales that relate to the nature, siructure and terms of the future obligations. The standard also states that
government bond rates may be an appropriate starting point in determining a risk-free rate. The company
generally uses currency specific risk-free rates to discount the cutstanding claims provision

The weighted average risk-free rales used o discount the outstanding clasms provision are summarised below.

2013 2012

% %%

SUCCEEDING SUBSEQUENT SUCCEEDING SUBSEQUENT

YEAR YEARS YEAR YEARS

New Zealand 2.90 3.29-4.70 2.53 2.63-3.71
Asia 0.08-0.30 0.23-2.61 0.00.0.23 (0.05-1.41
Pacific 0.05-2.45 0,16-4,30 0.01-2.85 -0.04-3.33
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {CONTINUED)

{A) Outstanding claims provision (continued)

{iv)] Financial assumptions used to determine the outstanding claims provision (continued)

Weighted average term to settlement

The relevant discount rale is applied to the anticipated cash flow profile of the central estimate, including related
reinsurance recoveries, determined by reference to a combination of historical analysis and current expectations
of when claims and recoveries will be settled. Details of the weighted average term to seitlement of the
company's claims provision, analysed by region and currency, are summarised below.

2013 2012
YEARS YEARS
NZD sSGD Other Total NZD SGD Other Total
Asia - 1.21 - 1.21 - 1.31 - 1.31
New Zealand 1.65 - - 1.65 2.10 - - 210
Pacific - - 2.23 2.23 - - 2.58 258

{v) Impact of changes in key variables on the outstanding claims provision

The impact of changes in key variables used in the calculation of the outstanding claims provision is
summarised in the table below, Each change has been calculated in isolation from the other changes and each
change shows the after tax impact on profit assuming that there is no change to any of the other variables in
practice, this is considered unlikely as, for example, an increase in interest rates is normally accompanied by an
increase in the rate of inflation. As can be seen from the table below. the impact of a change in discount rates is
largely offset by the impact of a change in the rate of inflation.

The sensilivities below assume that all changes directly impact profit after tax. In practice, however, it is likely
that If the central estimate was to increase by 5%, at least part of the increase would result in a decrease in the
probability of adequacy. Likewise, if the coefficient of variation were 1o increase by 1%, it is likely that the
prebability of adequacy would reduce from its current level and that the change would therefore impact the
amount of risk margins held rather than net profit after income tax or equity.

The impact of a change n interest rates on profit after tax due to market value movement on fixed interest
securities is shown in note 4(D)(i).
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {CONTINUED)

(A) Outstanding claims provision (continued}
(v} Impactof changes in key variables on the outstanding claims provision {continued)

PROFIT (LOSS)"

SENSITIVITY 2013 2012

Yo SM S

Central estimate +5 (8.8) (7.7)
-5 8.8 7.7

Inflation rate +0.5 {1.3) (1.4)
-0.5 1.3 1.4

Discount rate +0.5 1.3 1.4
-0.5 {1.4) (1.4)

Coefficient of variation +1 {2.5) 2.2)
-1 2.5 22

Probability of adequacy +1 {1.6} (1.6)
-1 1.4 1.4

Weighted average term to settlement years +10 {0.8) (0.7}
-10 0.8 0.7

" Net of tax at the company's prima facie rate of 30%

{B) Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date, the adequacy of the unearned premium liability is assessed on a net of reinsurance
basis against the present value of the expected future cash flows relating to potential future claims, plus a risk
margin to reflect the inherent uncertainty of the ceniral estimate {refer note 19({D)). Future claims are those

claims expected to arise from claims evenis occurring after the balance sheel date. The assessment is carried
out using the same methods described in note 3(A) above

AASE 1023 requires that this test be carried out at the ievel of a "portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly
similar risks and are managed together in a single portfolio”. As AASB 1023 does not explicilly define "broadly
similar risks" or "managed together as a single portfolio”, the company has interpreled these terms in 2 way that
reflects our day to day approach to managing the various risks to which the company is exposed that is at the
regional segment level. The company's operating segments are structured in a way that facilitates the efficient
and effective management of our insurance businesses, and recognises that these businesses are subject to
broadly similar risks such as the interest and inflation rate environment; market risk factors; credit risk faciors;
social and pelitical risk such as unemployment and social unrest, and common msurance risks such as
exposure to weather-related or natural catastrophe risks.

{C) Intangible assets

Goodwill and intangibles assets with an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently when changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Intangibles assels subject {o amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable, The impairment review is based on the
net presen! value of estimated future cash flows of the relevant asset, the refevant cash generating unit or
relevant group of cash generating units. For details of key assumptions and estimates used, refer to note 17(A).

The discount rates used to valug cash generating units at 31 December 2013 as part of the imparment testing
of goodwill are included in note 17(B}. If the discount rate applied in these calculations was increased by 1%
over the rates applied at 31 December 2013, the company would not be required to reflect an impairment
charge {(Z2012: nil).
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT

QBE ‘G‘rqup's risk management policy, strategy and framework are embedded in the head office and in each of
the divisional operations, ensuring a consistent approach to managing risk across the organisation. The board
annually approves a comprehensive risk management strategy (RMS), including a risk appetite statement and a

reinsurance management strategy (REMS), both of which are tedged with the Australian Prudential Regulation
Authority (APRA).

As a member of the QBE Group, the company has adopted the risk management policy of QBE Group where
applicable. The company's risk management objectives are to:

« achieve competitive advantage through better understanding the risk environment in which QBE cperates;
« optimise risk and more effectively allocate capital and rescurces by assessing the balance of risk and reward;
and

» avoid unwelcome surprises by reducing uncertainty and volatility.

It is QBE Group's policy to adopt a rigorous approach to managing risk throughout the company. Risk
management is a continuous process and an integral part of quality business management. QBE Group's
approach is to integrate risk management into the broader management processes of the organisation It is
QBE Group's philosophy to ensure that risk management remains embedded in the business and that the risk
makers or risk takers are themselves the risk managers. Specifically, the management of risk must occur at
each point in the business management cycle

Risk management is a key part of our governance structure and our strategic and business planning. It
underpins the setting of limits and authorities and it is embedded in the monitoring and evaluation of
performance. This holistic approach to risk management allows all of the company's risks lo be managed in an
integrated manner,

QBE Group's global risk management framework defines the risks that QBE Group is exposed to and sets out
the framework to manage those risks and meet strategic objectives whilst taking into account the creation of
value of our shareholders. The framework is made up of complementary elements that are embedded
throughout the business management cycle and culiure. Key aspects include: governance, risk appetile and
tolerance, delegated authorities, risk policies, measurement and modelling, risk and control self assessment,
risk treatment, optimisation and ongoing improvement through management action plans, risk and performance
monitoring.

A fundamental part of the company's overall risk managemen! strategy is the effective governance and
management of the risks that impact the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows from insurance conlracts.
The operating activities of the company expose it o risks such as market risk, credil risk and liquidity risk.
The company's risk management framework recognises the unprediclability of financial markets and seeks lo
minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The company has established internal controls
to manage risk in the key areas of exposure relevant to ils business.

QBE Group's risk profile is described under the following broad risk categories:

Strateqic risk
Insurance risk
Credit risk
Market risk
Liguidity risk
Operational risk
Group risk.
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Each of these is described more fully in sections (A) to (G) below.

(A) Strategic risk
Strategic risk refers to the current and prospective impact on earnings and or capital arising from strategic
business decisions, implementation of decisions and responsiveness to external change. This includes risks

associated with business strategy and change, tax planning, investment strategy and corporate governance. Of
parlicular relevance is capital management risk.

{i) Acquisition risk
Acquisition risks are principally managed by QBE Group's control over the selection of potential acquisitions,
due diligence, negotiation of warranties and indemnities and subsequent integration processes. QBE Group has

experienced due diligence teams in each operating divisions and has documented minimum requirements for
carrying out due diligence.

(if)  Capital mapagement risk

Australian and overseas controlled entities are subject to extensive prudential and other forms of regulation in
the jurisdictions in which they conduct business, Prudential regulation is generally designed to protect
policyholders, Regulation covers a number of areas including solvency, change in control and capital movement
limitations. The regulatory environment in Australia and overseas continues {o evolve in response to economic,
political and industry developments. QBE Group works closely with regulators and monitors regulatory

developments across its global operations to assess their potential impact on its ability 1o meet solvency and
other requirements. Refer to note 22(E).

(B} Insurance risk

Insurance risk is the risk of fluctuations in the timing, frequency and severity of insured events and claims
settlements, relative to the expectations at the time of underwriting This includes underwriting, catastrophe,
claims concentration and claims estimation risks. The risks inherent in any single insurance contract are the
possibility of the insured event occurring and the uncertainly of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very
nature of an insurance contract, these risks are random and unpredictable. In relation 1o the pricing of individual
insurance confracts and the determination of the level of the outstanding claims provision in relation to a
portfolio of insurance contracts, the principal risk is that the ultimate claims payments will exceed the carrying
amount of the provision established.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of simitar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
around the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified insurance and reinsurance company is less
likely to be affected by a change in any one specific portfolio. The company has developed its underwriting
strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and, within each of these categories, to achieve a
sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variahility of the expected outcome.

QBE Group has established the following protocols to manage its insurance risk across the underwriting, claims,
and oulwards reinsurance.
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(B) Insurance risk (continued)

(i) Underwriting risks

Selection and pricing of risks

Underwriting authority is delegated to experienced underwriters for the forthcomiing year following a detaied
retrospective and prospective analysis of each class of business as part of the company's annuai business
planning process. Delegated authorities reflect the level of risk which QBE Group is prepared to take. The
authorities include reference to some combination of:

return on risk adjusted equity;

gross written premium;

premium per confract;

sum insured per contract;

aggregate exposures per zone:

probable maximum loss and realistic disaster scenarios (RDSs);
ievels and quality of reinsurance protection;

geographic exposures, and/or

classes of business and types of product that may be written

® £ 3 o &2 e e+ 0w

Limits in respect of each of the above are set at a portfolio, divisional and company-wide level and are included
within business plans for individual classes of business. They are adjusted at a local level to reflact a risk faclor
in respect of each controlled entity depending on previous underwriting results, the economic environment and
other potential drivers of volatility,

Insurance and reinsurance policies are written in accordance with local management practices and regulations
within each jurisdiction taking into account the company's risk appetile and tolerance and underwriting
standards. Non-standard and long-term policies may only be written if expressly included in the delegaled
authonties. No individual long-term or non-standard policy is material lo the company.

Pricing of risks is controlled by the use of in-house pricing modeis relevant to specific portfolios and the markets
in which company operates. Experienced underwriters and actuaries maintain historical pricing and claims
analysis for each portfolio and this is combined with a detailed knowledge of the current developments in the
respective markets and classes of business.

Concentration risk

The company's exposure to concentrations of insurance risk s mitigated by a porifolio diversified across 8
countries and hundreds of classes of business. Product diversification is achieved through a strategy of
developing strong underwriting skills in a wide variety of classes of business. A combination of core and
speciality products under the control of employees skilled in underwriting such products allows QBE lo lead
underwrite in many of the markets in which it operales.

The table below demonstrates the diversity of the company's operations.

2013 2012

GROSS EARNED PREMIUM sM SM
Property 164.9 129.2
Marine, energy and aviation 83.7 614
Liability 79.3 425
Professional indemnity 39.6 49.7
Motor and motor casualty 38.4 303
Accident and heaith 37.2 332
Financial and credit 21.2 11.3
Engineering 7.4 23.9
Workers' compensation 4.3 13.5
Other 0.9 10.5
476.9 405.5
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(B) Insurance risk (continued)

(i)  Underwriting risks (continued)

The company has potential exposure to catasirophe losses that may impact more than one operating division,
Each year, the company sets its {olerance to concentration risk. RDSs, using industry standard and QBE Group
determined probable maximum losses and various catasirophe models are calculated for each portiolic as part
of the business planning process. These RDSs are aggregated across all portfolios and divisions to determine
the company's maximum event retention (MER} which is the estimated maximum net loss from a one in 250
year natural catastrophes event. The MER must be less than the company's concentration risk olerance,
otherwise steps such as the purchase of additional reinsurance are taken to limit the exposure.

{ii) Claims management and claims estimation risks
The company's approach to determining the outstanding claims provision and the related sensitivities are set

out in note 3. The company seeks to ensure the adequacy of its outstanding claims provision by reference ‘o the
following controls:

« experienced claims managers work with underwriters on coverage issues and operate within the levels of
authority delegaied to them in respect of the settlement of claims;

» processes exist 1o ensure that all claims advices are caplured and updated on a timely basis with a realistic
assessment of the ultimate claims cost;

- initial IBNR estimates are set by experienced internal actuaries in conjunction with the local product managers
and underwriters for each class of business in each business unit. The valuation of the central estimate 1s
primarily performed by actuaries who are not involved in the pricing function and who therefore provide an
independent assessment;

- the determination of the risk margin is performed by senior management and the board with input from the
Appointed Actuary;

« the aggregale outstanding claims provision for each controlied entity 1s assessed in a series of quarterly
internal claims review meetings which are aitended by senior management and the Appointed Actuary in
order to ensure consistency of provisioning practices across all countries, and

« all the company's ceniral estimate is reviewed by external actuaries at least annually.

Despite the rigour involved in the establishment and review of the outstanding claims provision, the provision is
subject Lo significant uncertainty for the reasons provided in note 3.

(iii) Outwards reinsurance

The company limits its exposure to an individual catastrophe or an accumulation of claims by reinsuring a

portion of risks underwritten. In this way, the company can control exposure to insurance Josses, reduce
volatility of reported resulis and protect capital.

Effective governance and management of reinsurance protection is a fundamental part of the company’s risk
management practices. QBE Group has in place sysiems, internal controls and processes to ensure that its
reinsurance arrangements are appropriate to enable the company to meet its obligations to policyholders, whilst
protecting the wealth of its shareholders. This framework is outlined in the company's REMS which states that
lhe company's maximum risk lolerance for an individual natural catastrophe at a 1 in 250 year probability is
8.25% of budgeted net earned premium,

The senior authority for purchasing reinsurance is the chief executive officer andfor the chief reinsurance officer,

who generally act after consultation with and based on recommendations from the Group reinsurance forum
(GRF).

The GRF delermines the company’'s exposure to and appetite for catastrophes and individual risks net of
reinsurance as part of the business planning pracess. The resulting strategy is recommended to the chief
executive officer (previously the chief executive officer and/or the chief executive officer of global underwriting
operations), who provides the final approval on the reinsurance purchasing strategy. The GRF monitors and
reports on placement of reinsurance and oversees the relevant committees that monitor reinsurance credit nisk
and commutation risks, as well as the processes for evalualing the effectiveness of reinsurances purchased.
Reinsurance counterparly credit risk is considered in note 4(C){if).
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4. RISK MANAGENENT {CONTINUED)

(B} Insurance risk (continued)

(iii) Outwards reinsurance (continued)

The company purchases significant levels of external reinsurance protection to ensure that the company's net
retention is aligned with its risk tolerance. In addition, QBE Group retains a portion of its reinsurance placements
through its captive, Equator Reinsurances Limited {Equalor Re). Reinsurance cover provided by Equator Re
gives reinsurance protection to the company enabling QBE Group to more effectively manage capital.

{C) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of default by borrowers and transactional counterparties as well as the loss of value of

assets due to deterioration in credit quality. Exposure to credit risk results from financial transactions with
securities issuers, debtors, borrowers, brokers, policyholders, reinsurers and guarantors.

The company's credit nisk arises mainly from investment and reinsurance protection aclivities. The following
policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the company's exposure to credit risk:

« A QBE Group-wide investment credit risk policy is in place which defines what constitutes credit risk for QBE
group and establishes tolerance levels. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches
are reported to the QBE Group investment committee.

+ Net exposure limits are set for each counterparty or group of counterparties in relation to investments, cash
deposits and forward foreign exchange exposures. The policy also sets out minimum credit ratings for
investments.

« QBE Group has strict guidelines covering the limits and leims of net open derivative posilions and the
counterparties with which the company may transact. The company does not expect any investment
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations given their strong credit ratings and therefore does not require
collateral or other security to support derivatives. The company only uses derivatives in highly kiquid markets.

« Credil risk in respect of premium debtors and reinsurance receivables is actively monitored. Strict controls are
maintained over counterparty exposures. Business is transacted with counterparties that have a strong credit
rating and concentration of risk is managed by adherence to counterparty limits. The provision for impairment
is formally assessed by management at least four times a year.
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4, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(C)  Credit risk (continued)

(B Investment counterparty credit risk

The following tables provide information regarding the company's aggregate credit risk exposure at the balance
sheet date in respect of the major classes of financial assets. Trade and other receivables are excluded from
this analysis on the basis that they comprise of smaller credit risk items which generally cannot be rated and are
not individually material. The analysis classifies the assets according to Moady's counterparty credit ratings.
Aza is the highest possible rating. Rated assels faling outside the range of Aaa to Baa are classified as

speculative grade.

QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2043

__. CREDIT RATING

" SPECULA- NOT
Aaa Aa A Baa TIVE RATED TOTAL
GRADE
SM S SV M $M SM SM

At 31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 19.9 375 - - 4.0 61.6
Interest bearing investments 274.0 415.1 25.3 - - 1.2 715.6
Derivative financial
instruments - 0.2 0.6 - - - 0.8
At 31 December 2012
Cash and cash equivalents - 52.2 263 - - 4.0 825
Interest hearing investments 2131 229.8 252 - - 11 469.2
Derivative financial i 01 ) A ) A 01
instruments

The carrying amount of the relevant asset classes in the balance sheet represents the maximum amount of

credit exposure. The fair value of derivalives shown on the balance sheet represents the cuirent risk exposure
but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the fulure as a resuit of changing values. Further detads

are provided in note 11{A).
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(C) Credit risk (continued)
{§) Investment counterparty credit risk {continued)

The following table provides information regarding the ageing of the company's financial assets that are past
due but not impaired at the balance sheet date

PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

NEITHER

PASTDUE 0703 3TO6 6MTHS TO GRTE:;E? TOTAL
NOR MTHS MTHS 1 YEAR YEAR
IMPAIRED
SM SM M SM M $Mi

At 31 December 2013
Amounts due from related
entities 116.8 . - - - 116.8
Premium receivable ' 67.1 28.3 10.3 1.9 . 107.6
Other receivables 7.0 - - - 0.5 7.5
Amount due from controlled .
entities 15.9 - . - - 15.9
At 31 December 2012
Amounis due from related
entities 1176 - - . - 117 6
Premium receivabte 58.4 20.8 5.9 1.9 0.4 874
Other receivables 18.1 - - - 06 187
Amount due from controlled
entities 7.2 i ) ) ) 72

" Net of a provision for impairment

(ii} Reinsurance counterparty credit risk

The company's obiective is to maximise placement of reinsurance with highly rated counterparties.
Concentration of risk with reinsurance counterparties is monitored stnctly and regularly by the company's
security commitiee and is controlted by reference to the following protocols.

» Treaty or facultative reinsurance is placed in accordance with the requirements of the company's reinsurance
management stralegy and Group security committee guidelines;

Reinsurance arrangements are regularly reassessed to determine their effectiveness based on current
exposures, historic losses and potential fulure losses based on RDSs and the company’'s ICRC (2012. MER),
and

« Exposure to reinsurance counterparties and the credit quality of those counterparties is actively monitored

Credit risk exposures are calculated regularly and compared with authorised credit limits. In certain cases, the
company requires lefters of credit or other collateral arrangements to be provided o guarantee the recoverability
of the amount involved. The credit rating analysis below includes the impact of such security arrangements. In
some cases, further security has been oblained in the form of trust arrangements, reinsurer default protection
and other potential offsets. This additional security has not been included in the credit rating analysis set out
below.
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(i)

Credit risk {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Reinsurance counterparty credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the quality of the company's credit risk exposure in respect of
undiscounted reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims at the balance sheet date, The analysis
classifies the assets according to Standard and Poors counterparty ratings. AAA is the highest possible rating,
Rated assets falling outside the range of AAA to BBB are classified as speculative grade.

CREDIT RATING

SPECULA NOT
AAA AA A B8BB -TIVE RATED TOTAL
GRADE
M Sm M $M $M $M M
Reinsurance
recoveries on 2013 - 244.1 267.9 0.5 . 10.7 523.2
outstanding
claims’ 2012 - 2957 305.4 0.1 - 5.4 606.6
Reinsurance 2013 R 13.7 48 i i N 8.6
recoveries on
_paid claims' 2012 - 6.7 5.1 . . - 11.8

' Net of a provision for impairment

The following table provides further information regarding the aging of reinsurance recoveries on paid ¢laims at

the balance sheet date.

PAST DUE

NEITHER PAST GMTHS  GREATER
DUE NOR OM.;%g 3MT£’2 TO 1 THAN 1 TOTAL

IMPAIRED YEAR YEAR
SM im M M $M M

Reinsurance

oo 2013 16.2 - 0.1 - 2.2 18.5
paid claims' 2012 10.5 ; 0.6 0.2 0.5 118

" Net of a provision for impairment

(D) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of variability in the value of, and returns on, investments and the risk associated wilh
variability of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and economy-wide inflation on both assets and liabilities,

excluding insurance liabilities.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk (due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rales); inlerest
rate risk (due to fluctuations in market interest rates); and price risk (due to fluctuations in market prices). Within
each of these categories, risks are evaluated before considering the effect of mitigating controls. The exislence
and effectiveness of such miligating controls are then measured to ensure that residual risks are managed
within the company's risk appetite and tolerance.
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(D)  Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk

The company’s exposure fo currency risk generally arises as a result of either the transiation of fereign currency
amounts back to the functional currency of a controlled entity (operational currency risk) or due to the translation

of the company’s net investment in foreign operations to the company's presentation currency of Australian
dollars.

Operational currency risk

The company is exposed to currency risk in respect of ils operational net foreign currency exposures within
each of its controlled entities. This risk is managed as follows:

+ The company manages the volatility arising from changes in foreign exchange rates by matching liabilibes
with assets of the same currency, as far as is practicable, thus ensuring that any exposures to foreign
currencies are minimised.

« Forward foreign exchange contracts are used where possible to protect residual currency positions. These
forward foreign exchange contracts are accounted for in accordance with (he derivatives accounting policy set
out in note 1{N).

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from operational foreign currency exposures are reporied in profit or
loss consistent with the gains or losses from the related forward foreign exchange contracts. The risk
management process covering the use of forward foreign exchange contracts involves close senior
management scrutiny, including regular board and other management reporting. All forward foreign exchange

contracts are subject to delegated authority levels provided fo management and the levels of exposure are
reviewed on an ongoing basis

The company's aim is to mitigate, where possible, its operational foreign currency exposures at a controiled
entity level. From time to time, the company may maintain an operational foreign currency exposure o offset
currency volatility arising from translation of foreign currency forecast profits, subject to senior management
approval and adherence to board approved limits.

The analysis below demonstrates the impact on profit after income tax of a 10% strengthening or weakening of
the Australian dollar against the major currencies {o which the company is exposed. The sensitivity is measured
with reference to the company's residual (ar unmatched) operationat foreign currency exposures at the balance
sheet date. Operational foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note (T)(ii). The sensitivilies provided demonsirate the impact of a change in one key vanable
in 1solation whilst other assumptions remain unchanged. This analysis does not take into account that the
matching of currency assets and liabilities is actively managed and therefore assumes no response by
management to movements in a variable
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4, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(D} Market risk {(continued)
Operational currency risk (continued)

RESIDUAL EXPOSURE PROFIT (LOSS)'

EXPOSURE CURRENCY SENSITIVITY 2013 2012 2013 2012
% $M SM SM SM

NZ dollar +10 115.8 87.1 7.4 55
-10 94.8 71.2 (7.4) {5.5)

Singapore dollar +10 9.3 3.3 0.6 0.2
40 7.6 27 (0.6) {0.2)

Euro +10 8.9 163 0.6 1.0
-10 8.1 13.4 (0.6) (1.0)

" Net of tax at the company’s prima facie rate of 30%

{ii)  Interest rate risk

Financial instruments with floating interest rate expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas
fixed interest rate instruments expose the company to fair value interest rate risk.

QBE Group’s nsk management approach is to minimise interest rate risk by actively managing investment
portfolios to achieve a balance hetween cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk. The

company mnvests in high quality, liquid interest-bearing securities and cash and actively manages the duration of
the fixed interest portfolio.

The claims provision is discounted to present value by reference to risk-free interest rates. The company is
therefore exposed to potential underwriting result volalility as a result of interest rale movements. In practice,
however, an increase or decrease in interest rates is normally offset by a corresponding increase or decrease in
inflation. Details are provided in nole 3(A)(v). QBE Group has a policy of maintaining a relatively short duration

for assets backing policyholders' funds in order to minimise any further potentiai volatility affecting insurance
profit.

The contractual maturity profile of the company's inlerest-bearing financial assets and hence its exposure to
interest rale risk, and the effective weighted average interest rate for interest-bearing financial assets
is analysed in the table below. The lable includes investments at the maturity date of the security; however, many
of the tonger dated securities have call dates of relatively short duration. At 31 December 2013, the average
modified duration of cash and fixed interest securities was 0,29 years (2012 0.27 years).
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4, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(D)  Market risk (continued)
(i} Interest rate risk {continued)

__INTEREST-BEARING FINANGIAL ASSETS MATURING IN

QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1 YEAR 1702 2TO3 3T0O4 4705 OVER 5 TOTAL
OR LESS YEARS  YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS

At 31 December 2013
Fixed rale SM 581.6 15.4 2.0 4.1 0.1 1.8 605.0
Weighted
average interest % 1.36 3.53 0.86 0.86 5.83 3.156 1.42
rale
Floating rate M 61.7 46.9 37.9 13.4 7.5 4.8 172.2
Weighted
average interest % 1.08 2.57 2.43 3.44 3.54 1.39 2.08
fate S ;
At 31 Decemhber 2012
Fixed rate SM 400.8 5.8 87 2.0 52 0.1 4226
Weighled
average interest % 123 326 281 0.56 0.68 526 1.28
rate
Floating rate M BO.3 120 17.2 9.9 97 128.1
Weighied
average interest N 1.83 368 3.91 4.15 4.18 263
rale

All financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or foss. Movements in interest rates impact the
value of interest-bearing financial assets and therefore impact reported profit after tax. The impact of a 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rates on interest-bearing financial assets owned by the company at the balance

sheet date is shown in the table below

PROFIT (LOSS)'

SENSITIVITY 2013 2012

SM M

Interest rate movement - interest-bearing financial assets *0.5 (1.1) (0.7}
-0.5 0.9 0.5

" Net of tax at the company's prima facie rate of 30%
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4, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(D)  Warket risk {continued)

(ili) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate or currency risk), whether those changes

are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instrumenis traded on the market

The company is exposed to price risk on its investment in equities and uses derivative financial instruments {o
manage this exposure. The risk management processes over these derivative financial instruments are the
same as those explained in note 4(D){1) in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts Exposure is also
imanaged by diversification across woerldwide markets and currencies,

At 31 December 2013, the company did not hold any investments in listed equities (2012; nil).

All equities are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The price risk in relation to unlisted securities

is immaterial in terms of the possible impact on profit or loss and has not been included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The company is also exposed to price risk on its investment in corporate fixed interest and floating rate
securities. All corporate securities are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Movements in credit spreads

impact the value of corporale fixed interest and floating rate securities and therefore impact reported profil after
tax.

This risk is managed by investing in high quality, liquid interest-bearing corporate securities and by managing
the credit spread duration of the corporate securities portfolic.

The impact of a 0.5% increase or decrease n credit spreads on corporate fixed interest and floating rate
securities owned by the company at the balance sheet date is shown in the table below.

PROFIT {LOSS)'

SENSITIVITY 2013 2012

“h M M

inlerest rate movement — interesi-bearing +0.5 (1.4} (0.8)
financial assets 05 1.2 07

' Met of tax at the company's prima facie rate of 30%
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

{E}) Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of insufficient liquid assets 1o meet liabilities as they fall due to policyholders and
creditors. This includes the risk associated with asset liability management, The key objective of the company’s
asset and liability management strategy is to ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained at all times to meet the

company's obligations including its settiement of insurance liabilities and, within these parameters, to optimise
investment returns for policyholders and shareholders.

Liquidity must be sufficient to meet both planned and unplanned cash requirements. The company is exposed to
liguidity risk mainly through its obligations to make payments in refation to its msurance activities.

In addition to treasury cash held for working capital requirements, and in accordance with the company's
liquidity policy, a minimum percentage of consolidated investments and cash is held in liquid, short-term money
market securities to ensure that there are sufficient liquid funds available to meet insurance and investment

obligations. The company has a strong liquidity position. The maturity of the company's interest-hearing financial
assets is included in note 4(D)i).

The company limits the risk of liquidity shortfalls resulting from mismatches in the timing of claims payments and
receipts of claims recoveries by negotiating cash cali clauses in reinsurance contracts and seeking accelerated
settlements for large reinsurance recoveries.

The following tables summarise the contractual maturity profife of certain of the company's financial liabilities
based on the remaining contractual obligations

1 YEAR 1703 3706 OVER 5
OR LESS YEARS YEARS vEARs ~ NOTERM  TOTAL

At 31 December 2013

Trade payables 14.1 - 0.5 - - 14.6
Armounts due to
conirolled entities
Amounts due to related

entities 104.0 - R - - 104.0
Other payables 83.4 - - - - 83.4
Accrued expenses 11.5 - - - - 11.5
Financial guaranlees - 2.3 13.4 - - 18.7
Provisions 20 03 st S
At31December20t2 o

Trade payables 23.3 - 0.5 - - 238
?&?{%%deg r?titt(ijes 02 ) i ) ) 02
Amounts due fo related 55.7 ) } ; ) 557
entities

Other payables 477 - - - - 477
Accrued expenses 98 - - - - 9.6
Financial guarantees - - 13.1 - - 13.1
Provisions 0.1 0.2 - - - 0.3

The company has no significant concentration of liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the company's net oulstanding claims provision is analysed In note 20(B). For the malurity
profile of derivative financial instruments refer to note 11.
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4, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{F)  Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events (including legal risk). The company manages operationat risk within the same

robust risk management framework as its other risks. The risk assessment and monitoring framework involves
on-going;

+ identification and review of the key risks to the company;

« definilion of the acceptable level of risk appelite and tolerance:

+ assessment of those risks throughout the company in terms of the acceptable level of risk (risk tolerance) and
the residual risk remaining after having considered risk treatment;

+ assessment of whether each risk is within the acceptable level of risk, or requires appropriate action be taken
to mitigate any excess risk;

+ transparent monitoring and reporting of risk management refated matters on a timely basis; and

- alignment of internal audit programs with risks.

One of the cornerstones of the company's risk management framework is the recruitment and retention of high

quality people who are entrusted with appropriate levels of autonomy within the parameters of disciptined risk
management practices,

The company operates a system of delegaled authorilies based on expertise and proven performance, and

compliance is closely monitored. Other conlrols include effective segregation of duties, access controls and
authorisation and reconciliation procedures.

(G) Grouprisk

Group risk is the risk to a division arising specifically from being part of the wider Group, including the financial
impact and Joss of support from the parent company.
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5. INCOME AND EXPENSES

(A)  Income summary

2013 2012
$M M
Gross earned premium revenue
Direct and facultafive 476.9 404 4
Inward reinsurance - 1.4
476.9 4055
Other revenue
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 79.2 204.4
Reinsurance commission revenue 13.4 202
569.5 £530.1
Other income
[nterest, dividends and other income 20.6 79
Net fair value gains on financial assets 2.7 3.8
Realised gain on sales of relaled entities 0.2 -
23.5 11.7
ihcome 593.0 641.8
(B) Expenses summary
2013 2012
M SM
Outward reinsurance premium expense 188.2 176.1
Gross claims incurred 154.8 295.2
Gross commission expense 69.2 613
Other acquisition costs 21.2 17.6
Underwriting and other expenses 44.9 38.8
Investment expenses 0.5 04
_Foreign exchange losses 1.7 26
Expenses 520.85 582.0
Profit before income {ax 72.5 49.8
{C) Specific items
2013 2012
M M
Payments on operating leases 3.8 17
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1.0 0.8
LLoss on sale of plant and equipment 0.1 01
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6. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME

2013 2012
SM S
Interest, dividend and other income
Dividends received from controlled entities 13.0 1.5
interest received or receivable 7.6 6.4
20.6 7.9
Net fair value gains on financial assets
Fixed interest and other 27 3.8
Sale of related entities 0.2 -
2.9 38
Foreign exchange (losses) (1.7) (2.6)
Invesiment and other income 21.8 9.1
Investment expenses {0.5) {C.4)
Net investment and other income 21.3 87
POLICYHOLDERS’ SHAREHOLDER'S INVESTMENT
FUNDS FUNDS INCOME
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
SM S SM M M SM
investment and other income 9.0 22 12.8 6.9 21.8 21
investment expense {0.2) (0.2) (0.3) (0.2) {0.5) (0.4)
Net investment and other income 3.8 20 12.5 8.7 21.3 8.7
7. CLAIMS INCURRED
(A) Claims analysis
2013 2012
SM SM
Gross claims incurred and related expenses
Direct and facultative 197.7 3002
Inward reinsurance {2.9) {5.0)
194.8 2852
Reinsurance and other recoveries
Direct and facultative 79.1 2051
Inward reinsurance 0.1 {0.7)
79.2 204.4
Net claims incurred 115.6 90.8

39



QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

7. CLAIMS INCURRED (CONTINUED)

(B) Claims development

Current year's claims relate to risks borne in the current reporting year. Prior year claims relate o a
reassessment of the risks barne in all previous reporting years and include releases of risk margins as claims
are paid. Refer note 7({C)

2013 2012
CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL
YEAR YEARS YEAR YEARS
SM SM $M M SM SM
Gross claims incurred
and related expenses
Undiscounted 180.4 {27.0) 163.4 177.0 116.7 2937
Discount {3.1) 34.5 .4 {32) 47 1.5
187.3 7.5 194.8 173.8 121.4 295.2
Reinsurance and other
recoveries
Undiscounted 37.5 15.4 52.9 57.8 146.9 2047
Discount {1.8) 28.1 26.3 {1.3) 1.0 (0.3)
35.7 43.5 79.2 56.5 147.9 204 4
Net claims incurred
Undiscounted 152.8 (42.4) 110.8 1192 {30.2) 89.0
Discount (1.3) 6.4 5.1 {19) 3.7 1.8
151.6 {36.0) 115.6 117.3 {26.5) 908

(C) Reconciliations of net claims incurred to ciaims development table

The development of the net outstanding claims for the 10 most recent accident years is shown in note 20(E).
This noie is a reconciliation of the amounts included in the table in note 7(B) and the current financial year
movements [n the claims development table.

2013 2012
CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL CURRENT PRIOR TOTAL
YEAR YEARS YEAR YEARS
SM $M SM $M M SM
Net undiscounted claims
development ~ central
estimate (note 20 (E)) 127.0 {10.8) 116.4 1019 {3.8) 921
Foreign exchange - {5.8) (5.8) - (8.1) (8.1}
Movement in claims 12.9 (10.9) 2.0 58 26 3.4
settiement costs
Movement in discount (1.3} 6.4 5.1 (1.9} 37 7.8
Movement in risk margin 13.0 (15.1} (2.1_) 11.56 {14.9) (3.4)
Net claims incurred —
discounted 151.6 (36.0) 115.6 117.3 {26.5) 90.8

40



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(A} Reconciliation of prima facie tax to income tax expense

2013 2012
SM $M
Profit before income tax 72.5 49.8
Prima facie tax payable at 30% 21.7 14.9
Tax effect of non-temporary differences:
Differences in tax rates {0.7) {0.8)
Other, including non-allowable expenses and non-taxable income {4.4) 10
Prima facie tax adjusted for non-temporary differences 16.6 151
Overprovision in prior years (0.1) (0.2}
income tax expense 16.5 14.9
Analysed as follows:
Current tax 13.9 117
Deferred tax 2.7 34
Overprovision in prior years {0.1) (0.2)
16.5 14 9
Deferred tax expense (credit) comprises:
Deferred tax assets recognised in profit or loss 0.7 3.6
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in profit or loss 2.0 (0.2)
2.7 3.4

(B) Tax consolidation legislation
The accounting policy in relation to this legislation is set out in note 1{J).

QBE Insurance Group Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlied entities have implemenled the lax
consolidation legistation.

On adoption of the tax consolidation legisiation, the entities in the tax consolidated group entered into a tax
sharing and tax funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities are required to fully compensate QBE
insurance Group Limited for any current tax payable and are compensated by QBE Insurance Group Limited for
any current tax receivable and deferred tax assets relating lo unused tax losses or unused tax credits that are
transferred to QBE Insurance Group Limited under the tax consolidation legislation.

The head entity, QBE Insurance Group Limited, and the controlied entities in the tax consolidated group allocate
compensation based on a notional stand-alone tax calculation done as if each enlity in the lax consolidated
group was a stand-alone taxpayer in its own right. The assets and liabilities arising under the arrangement are
recognised as inter-company assets and liabilities in the balance sheet of each Ausfiralian company.
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9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2013 2012
$M SM
Cash at hank and on hand 41.7 540
Overnight money 0.2 02
Cash management trust 0.4 -
Term deposits 19.3 283
61.6 825

Analysed as follows:
Fixed interest rate 19.3 283
Floating interest rate 42.3 542
61.6 825

Amounts in cash and cash equivalents are the same as those included in the cash flow statement.

Cash and cash equivalents include balances readily convertible to cash. All balances are held to service normal
operational requirements.

(A) Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to profit after income tax

2013 2012

M SM

Net cash flows from operating activities 40.2 40.6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {1.0) {0.8)
Amaortisation of premium/discount on fixed interest securities {0.9) (0.5)
Increase in net amounts receivable from controlied entities 5.0 1.4
Loss on sale of plant and equipment {0.1) (0.1)
Net foreign exchange loss {1.7) (2.5)
Other gains on financial assets 8.2 24
{Increase)/decrease in net outstanding claims {3.00 37
Increase in unearned premiums {16.1) {24 .4)
Decrease in deferred insurance costs {8.7) (3.8)
Increase in trade debtors 59.6 222
Decrease in net operating assets {0.5) (1.2}
{increase)/decrease in trade payables {14.7) 74
Increase in tax liabilities o {10.3) (9.5)
Profit after income tax 56.0 34 8
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10.  INVESTMENTS

2013 2042
$M SM
Fixed interest rate
Short term money 493.0 322.1
Government bonds 47.2 53.1
Corporate bonds 45.4 19.1
585.6 394.3
Floating interest rate
Short term money 1.2 4.1
Fixed interesl trusts - 1.2
Corporate bonds 128.9 69.6
130.0 74.9
Total investments 715.6 469.2
Amounts maturing within 12 months 581.7 3987
_Amounts maturing in greater than 12 months R < 2 e X
Total investments 715.6 469.2

{&) Charges over investments and other assets

An encumbered asset with a market value of $2.6 million and face value of $2.5 million at 31 December 2013
was held in the investment portfolio of QBE Insurance {Australia) Limited on behalf of QBE Insurance
{International) Limited {(2012: market value $2.6 milion; face value $2.5 million).

{B) Fair value hierarchy

The investments of the company are disclosed in the table helow using a fair value hierarchy which reflects the
significance of inputs inte the determination of fair value as follows:

Level 1. Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for the same instruments.

Level 2; Valuation is based on quoted prices In active markets for similar assets or liabilities or other valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are based on observable market data, for example, consensus price
using broker quotes and valuation model with observable inputs.

Level 3: Valuation techniques are applied for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

2013 2042

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL3 TOTAL LEVEL 1 LEVEL2 LEVEL3 TOTAL

SM &M M Sm SV M $M SM

Short-term money 62.8 431.4 - 494.2 17.5 3087 - 326.2

Government 6.8 39.1 13 47.2 37.0 150 1.1 63.1
bonds

Fixed interest ) . i i i 12 i 19
tfrusts

Corporatebonds - ~ 1742 - ~Mv42 - BB7 LT .....887

Total investments 69,6 6447 1.3 715.6 545 4136 1.1 469 2
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10. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

{C) Valuation of investments

All investments are initially recorded at fair value and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each
reporting date,

Short-term money

Term deposits are valued at par plus accrued interest and are classified as level 1. Other short-term money
(bank bills, certificates of deposit, treasury bills and other short-term instruments) are priced using interest rates
and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervais.

Fixed and floating rate honds

Bonds which are traded in active markets and have quoted prices from external data providers are classified as
level 1. Bonds which are not traded in active markets are priced using broker quotes, using comparable prices
for similar instruments or using pricing techniques set by local regulators or exchanges.

Group Investments' independent control team values each asset, as described above, in accordance with the
Group’s investment valuation policy. The Group's investment valuation policy is reviewed at least annually and
any changes are approved by the Group Chief Investment Officer, who reports directly to the Group Chief
Financial Officer.

{D) Movements in level 3 investments
The following table provides an analysis of investments valued with reference to level 3 inputs.

2013 2012
Level 3 SM SN
At 1 January 1.1 -
Reclassification {o level 3 investmenls - -
Purchases 1.1 1.1
Dispusals (1.1} {G.1)
Net fair value unrealised gains recognised in profit or loss 0.2 0.1
At 31 December 1.3 11

(E}  Resirictions in use
In 2013, the New Zealand branch of the company is no longer required to have a security deposit with the New
Zealand Public Trust Office (2012; NZ$0.125 million).

The France branch of the company has €45.6 million ($70.2 million) in investment (2012; $64.0 million) with the
French insurance authorily and controller to cover technical reserves.
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11. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ASSETS LIABILITIES
2013 2012 2013 2012
$M $M M M
Maturing within 12 months
Forward foreign exchange contracts 0.8 0.1 1.7 0.2

Al derivative positions entered into by the company are for economic hedging purposes but do not, in all cases,
meet the criteria for hedge accounting

{A) Forward foreign exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts are entered intc by the company for the purpose of managing residual
foreign currency exposures. The company's policy for managing such exposures is explained in note 4(D).
Undiscounted contractual amounts to sell $28.3 million (2012: $12.9 million) were outstanding at the balance
sheet date. All these contracts mature within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(B) Credit risk
Credit risk may arise on forward foreign exchange contracts if the counterparty fails to meet its contractual

settlement obligations. The unrealised gains of $0.8 miliion (2012: $0.1 million} represent the company's
exposure to credit risk on forward foreign exchange contracts at the balance sheet date.

{(C) Fair value hierarchy

The company’s accounting policy in retation to the valuation of derivatives is set out in note 1{N}. Derivatives are
analysed in the table below using a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of inputs into the
determination of fair value, The hierarchy is explained in more detail in note 10(B).

2013 2012
LEVEL1 LEVEL2 LEVELS3 TOTAL LEVEL1 LEVEL2 LEVEL3 TOTAL
SM SM M $M M SM $M M

Assets
Forward fareign
exchange 0.8 - - 0.3 01 - - 01
contracls
Liabilities
Forward foreign
exchange 1.7 - - 1.7 02 - - 0.2
contracts
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12. TRADE AND CTHER RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
5M SM

Trade receivables
Premium receivable’ 107.6 87.4
Reinsurance and other recoveries’ 18.5 118
Unclosed premium 27.5 1896
153.6 118.7
Other receivables 7.5 187
Prepayments 0.8 02
Amounts due from controlled entities 15.9 72
Amounts due from related entities 116.8 117.8
Trade and other receivables 284.6 262.4
Receivahle within 12 months 292.3 261.4
Receivable in greater than 12 months 23 1.0
Trade and other receivables 294.6 262.4

" Net of a provision for impairment

(A) Provision for impairment

PREMIUM RECEIVABLE

REINSURANCE AND
OTHER RECOVERIES

2013 2012 2013 2042

M M M M

AL 1 January 6.3 0.5 1.7 1.0
Amounts recognised in profit or loss - - 0.5 07
Other movements 0.2 (0.2) {0.1) -
At 31 December 8.5 03 21 17

(B) Fairvalue

Due to the short term nature of these receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value

{C) Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivables. No
receivables are pledged by the company as collateral for liabilities or contingent liabifities. Information on the
ageing and credit rating of balances in the lable above, where relevant, s included in note 4{C). Note 4 also

provides more information on the risk management policies of the company.

46



QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

13.  DEFERRED INSURANCE COSTS

2013 2012
M $M
Deferred reinsurance premium 38.9 46.6
Deferred net commission 30.5 22.4
Deferred acquisition cosls 12.5 9.5
Deferred insurance costs 81.9 78.5
To be expensed within 12 months 75.7 72.3
To be expensed in grealer than 12 months 6.2 6.2
Deferred insurance costs 81.9 78.5
DEFERRED DEFERRED DEFERRED
REINSURANCE NET ACQUISITION
PREMIUM COMMISSION COSTS

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

M SM M $W SMm $M

At 1 January 46.86 508 22.4 19.6 9.5 8.8
Costs deferred in financial year 353 49.3 27.4 21.2 3.8 9.0

Amortisation of costs deferred in

previous financial years {48.4) {55.0) (23.0) (19.3) (2.4) (8.7)
Faoreign exchange 5.4 1.7 37 09 1.6 0.4
At 31 December 38.9 46.6 30.5 22.4 12.5 9.5
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ITIOFFICE
EQUIPMENT/
LEASEHOLD FIXTURES & MOTOR
2013 IMPROVEMENTS FITTINGS VEHICLES TOTAL
M 5M M M
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 1.2 7.0 6.7 8.9
Additions - 0.9 0.1 1.0
Disposals - {0.2) (0.2} {0.4)
Foreign exchange 0.2 1.2 0.1 1.5
Al 31 December 1.4 8.9 0.7 11.0
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January (0.8) {4.6) {0.4) {5.6)
Disposals - 0.2 0.2 0.4
Depreciation charge for the year (0.1) {0.8) {0.1) {1.0)
Foreign exchange (0.1} {G.8) {0.1) {1.0)
At 31 December (0.8) {6.0) {0.4) (7.2)
Carrying amount
Al 31 December 0.6 2.9 0.3 3.8
IT/IOFFICE
EQUIPMENT/
LEASEHOLD FIXTURES & MOTOR
2012 IMPROVEMENTS FITTING3 VEHICLES TOTAL
Sm sm &M M

Cost or vailuation
At 1 January 11 683 0.7 8.1
Additions 0.1 11 - 12
Disposals (0.6) - (0.6}
Foreignexchange e T 820 - 02
At31December T T 12 . Te 07 89
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
A1 January (0 5) {4.2) (0 4) (51}
Disposals - 0.4 0.1 0.5
Depreciation charge for the year (01 {CB) (G.1) (G.8)
Foreignexchange = = _ e e 02) o (0.2)
AL31 December I C 1 (48) (049 (5.6)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 0.6 2.4 0.3 3.3
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15. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

2013 2012
$M M
Deferred tax assets 4.6 4.8
Deferred tax liabilities 11.3 8.8
{A) Deferred tax assets
{i) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
2013 2012
M M
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Provision for impairment 0.1 0.2
Employee benefits 0.4 1.1
Insurance provisions 0.9 1.4
Invesiment related 2.3 2.1
Other 0.9 0.5
Deferred tax assets before set-off 4.6 5.3
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities - {0.5)
4.6 4.8
Deferred tax assets analysed as foliows:
Recoverable within 12 months 1.2 0.5
Recoverable in greater than 12 months 3.4 4.8
4.6 5.3
{ii) Movements
2013 2012
S$M S
At 1 January 53 8.8
_Amounts recognised in profitor loss e (0.7} 26)
At 31 December 4.6 5.3

(B) Taxlosses
The company has no lax losses brought to account in 2013 (2012: nil}.
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15. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

{C) Deferred tax liabilities

(i) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
2013 2012
SM SM
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Insurance provisions 8.7 67
Investment related 2.5 25
Depregiation ... 0101
11.3 8.3
Deferred tax liabilities before set-off 11.3 9.3
Set-off of deferred tax assets - {0.5)
11.3 8.8
Deferred tax liabilities analysed as follows:
Payable within 12 months 2.0 1.8
Payable in greater than 12 months 9.3 7.4
11.3 93
(i) Movements:
2013 2012
S S
A1 January 9.3 95
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 2.0 {0.2)
At 31 December 11.3 9.3

16.  INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

COUNTRY OF INVESTMENT EQUITY HOLDING
INCORPORATION
2013 2012 2013 2012
M SM % Y

QBE Insurance {Malaysia) Malaysia 44.0 44.0 100 100
Berhad
PT Asuransi QBE Pool Indonesia 5.8 52 55 55
Indonesia
QBE Insurance (Vietnam) Vietnam 18.3 18.3 100 100
Company Lid
QOBE Marine Underwriting Singapore - 0.8 - 100
Agency Pte. Limited
QBE Insurance (Singapore) Pte.  Singapore 0.2 02 100 100
Limited
QBE [nsurance {Thailand) Co  Thailand 4.2 4.2 40.8 4508
Limited'

72,5 727

'For accounting purposes, the group has management control of QBE Insurance {Thailand) Co Limited

During the year, invesimenis of $0.6 million (2012: $2.9 million) and dispesal of $0.8 million (2012; $2.7 mulion)

were made in controlled entities.
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17.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SOFTWARE GOODWILL TOTAL
2013 M $M $M
Cost
At 1 January - 16.5 16.5
Additions 1.6 - 1.6
At 31 December 1.6 16.5 18.1
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Amartisation for the year - - “
At 31 December - - -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 1.6 16.5 18.1
SOFTWARE GOODWILL TOTAL
2012 SM sM $M
Cost
At 1 January “ 16.5 16.5
Additions - - -
At 31 December - 16.5 16.5
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January . - -
Impairment losses - - -
Amortisation for the year - - -
At 31 December - - -
Carrying amount
At 31 December - 16.5 16.5

(A) Goodwill

Goodwill is allccated to cash generating units, or groups of units, expected to benefit from synergies arising
from ihe acquisition giving rise to the goedwill Cash generating units reflect the level at which goodwill is
monitored by management. As the company continues to acquire operations and reorganise the way that
operations are managed, reporting structures may change giving rise to a reassessment of cash generaling
units and/or the allocation of goodwill to those cash generating units.

The most significant Cash Generating Unit is the New Zealand branch, which includes HIH business acquired
on 30 April 2001,

(B) Impairment testing of goodwill

The company's accounting policy in respect of impairment testing of goodwill is set out in note 1(R). The
recoverable amount of each cash generating unit has been determined by reference to a value in use
calculation based on the following key assumplions and estimates;

« cash flow projections based on the latest three year business plan which has been approved by the board.
Cash flow forecasls are based on a combination of historical performance combined with management's
expectations of future performance based on prevailing and anticipated market factors;

« terminal value is calculated using 2 perpetuity growth formula based on the cash flow forecast for year three.
Growlh rate reflects the long-term average of the country relevant to the cash generating unit and is sourced
from observable market information. The terminal growth rate used in management's impairment testing is
2.5% (2012: 2.5%).
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(B} Iimpairment testing of goodwill {continued)

. discount rates reflect a beta and a market risk premium sourced from observable market information and a
specific risk premium appropriate to reflect the nature of the business of each cash generating unit.

The pre-tax discount rates used to value significant cash generating units at 31 December 2013 were 9.6% for
New Zealand branch and 11.1% for other branches (2012: 9.2% for all branches).

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012
SM SM
Trade payables 14.6 23.8
Amounts due to related entities 104.0 557
Amounts due o controlled entities - 0.2
Gther payables 83.4 47.7
Accrued expenses 11.5 9.6
Trade and other payables 213.5 137.0
Payable within 12 months 213.0 138.5
Payable in greater than 12 months 0.5 0.5
Trade and olher payables 213.5 137.0
19.  UNEARNED PREMIUM
(A) Unearned premium
2013 2012
M M
At 1 January 228.9 195.8
Deferral of premium on contracts wrilten in the period 253.0 218.8
Earning of premium written in previous periods (236.9) (194.4)
Acquisition of entities 0.4 -
Foreign exchange e ......883 . 87
At 31 December 280.7 228.9
To be earned within 12 months 265.5 216.4
To be earned in grealer than 12 manths 5.2 12.5
Unearned premium 280.7 2289
{(B) Net premium liabitities
NOTE 2013 2012
SM SM
Unearned premium 280.7 2289
Deferred insurance cosis N b {818 __{78.5)
Net premium liabilities 198.8 150.4

(C) Expected present value of future cash flows for future claims including risk margin

2013 202
M S
Undiscounted central estimate 178.0 139.5
_Risk margin _ . o 108 9.3
189.9 148.8

_Discount to present value (1.9) (1.7

Expected present value of future cash flows for future claims including

risk margin 188.0 1471
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19. UNEARNED PREMIUM (CONTINUED)

(D} Liability adequacy test

The probability of adequacy applied in the liability adequacy test differs from the probabiity of adequacy
adopted in determining the outstanding claims provision. The reason for the difference is that the former is a
benchmark used only to test the sufficiency of net premium liabilities whereas the latter is a measure of the
adequacy of the outstanding claims provision actually carried by the company.

AASB 1023 requires the inclusion of a risk margin in insurance liabilities, but does not prescribe a minimum
level of margin. Whilst there is established practice in the calculation of the probability of adequacy of the
outstanding claims provisions, no such guidance exists in respect of the jevel of risk margin to be used in
determining the adequacy of net premium liabilities. The company has adopted a risk margin of 6.2% (2012
6.7%) for premium liabilities, for the purposes of the liability adequacy test to produce a 75% probability of
adequacy in respect of total insurance liabilities. The 75% basis is a recognised industry benchmark in Australia,
being the minimum probability of adequacy required for Australian licensed insurers by APRA. Without allowing
for diversification benefits, the application of the 6.0% (2012: 4.3%) risk margin to the premium liabilities is

estimated to achieve a probability of adequacy of 73.0% (2012. 70.0%) on premium liabilities on a standalone
basis.

The application of the liability adequacy test in respect of net premium liabilities identified a surplus at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012,

{E) Risk margin
The process used to determine risk margin is explained in note 3(A)(iii).

The risk margin in expected future cash flows for future claims as a percentage of the discounted central
estimale is 6.2% (2012: 6.7%)
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20. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

(A} Net outstanding claims

2013 2012

SM sM

Gross outstanding claims provision 7141 767.8
Risk margin 37.2 351
Qutstanding claims 751.3 802.9
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims (498.6) (582.9)
Net oulstanding claims provision 2527 220.0

Analysed as follows:

Net undiscounted central estimate 222.2 190.5
Discount {6.7) (5.6)
Net central estimate 215.5 184.9
Risk margin 37.2 351
Net outstanding claims provision 252.7 2200
Gross outstanding claims 765.8 816 0
Claims settlement cosls 12.8 16.2
7826 8322
Discount to present value {31.3) (29.3)
Gross outstanding claims provision 751.3 8029
Less than 12 months 336.5 281.2
Greater than 12 months 414.8 5217
Gross outstanding claims provision 7513 802.9
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims '? 523.2 606.86
Discount lo present value (24.6) (23.7)
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims 498.8 582.9
Less than 12 months 186.2 183.8
Greaterthan 12months 24 3991
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims ' 498.6 582 9

" Reinsurance and other recoveries on oulstanding claims is shown net of a provision for impairment of nil

(2012: nil)

In 2013, Letlers of Credit (LOC) have been issued to the company by Commonwealth Bank lo the value of
NZ$116.8 million ($107.6 million) (2012; $138 5 million) for an external non related party recovery, and
Citibank N.A. Sydney Branch to the value of $134.6 million (2012: $138.8 million) for a related parly
recovery. In addition a further LOC from a non related party of NZ$17.0 mitlion {$15.7 million) (2012; $3.9
milion) has been issued to support reinsurance recoveries outstanding from a non-APRA authorised
reinsurer).

2
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20.  OUTSTANDING CLAIMS {(CONTINUED)

(B} Maturity profile of net outstanding claims
The expected maturity of the company's discounted net outstanding claims provision is analysed below.

1 YEAR

OR 1702 2TO3 3TC4 4TOS5 OVERS
LESS YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS TOTAL

At 31 December 2013 M 132.9 54.0 26.8 20.0 8.3 10.7 2527
At 31 December 2012 M 104.3 44.2 25.5 187 14.4 15.9 2200
An analysis of the weighted average term to settlement of the claims provision is included in note 3(A){iv).

{C} Risk margin
The process used to determine the risk margin is explained in note 3(A){ii} and details of the risk-free discount
rates adopted are set out in note 3{A)(iv).

The risk margin included in net outstanding claims is 17.3% (2012; 18.0%) of the central estimate. The level of
uncertainty in the net discounted central estimate at 31 December 2013 has reduced, mainly due to increased
scale and lower voiatility in New Zealand. As a consequence, the probability of adequacy at 31 December 2013
is 93.8% (2012; 93.7%) which is above APRA's 75% benchmark. Net profit after tax would have increased by
50.2 million if the probability of adequacy was maintained at 93.7%.

(D} Reconciliation of movement in discounted cutstanding claims provision

2013 2012
GROSS  REINSURANCE NET GROSS REINSURANCE NET
S L SM M M SM
At 1 January 802.9 582.9 220.0 812.8 597.2 2156
Increase in net claims incurred in -
current accident year 187.3 357 151.6 173.8 565 117.3
Movement in prior year claims
provision _____ L B B ma s @68
Incurred claims recognised in 194.8 79.2 115.6 2952 204 4 90.8
profit or loss ' ’ ) : ‘ :
Claim (payments) recoveries
during the year {340.4) {224.8) (115.8) {333.3) {244.8) (88.5)
Foreign exchange (intercompany 94.0 61.1 399 28.2 6.1 51
_movement) L o e _
At 31 December 751.3 498.6 252.7 802.9 582.9 220.0
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20.  OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (CONTINUED)

(E} Claims development - undiscounted net central estimate

2003
& 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 009 2010 2011 2012 2012 TOTAL
prior SM &4 &0 M M M S5 M SM &M M
M
Het clalnys cost — central ostimate:
Al G 0! sedent yeat 505 a3 7 Wrs W66 G35 13 6% 2 107 4 H T 2P0 (]3]
Ore yuar algr 9o 7 851 839 a7 ek gag Hedy wr g 024 BLG 3
Two yuats lator 872 831 799 838 a4 856 GE 2 00 IALI
Thiee yons fatet [315] 223 80 -2 1630 836 ST B 6274
Faur years later g5 2 T84 B7 g 843 881 845 5160
Fivg years iater 824 56 Bh B 2ze BEZ Erig
S yoars later 824 iny B4 B 827 K
Seven yonrs iater 812 791 B G 245 3
Erght years laler g1 A4 Lo B0
Hrn years wter Bt & arg
Current centig! estirrate cost for the ton most ar e, e B0 P ap2 ot arn 1030 a4 1970 wan 7
rézent sroden! years
Cumufaben rot cladrs payieerts o dale {8a 1) (e B4 (794} {41 6j {726} (1t {34 4) 672 123y {763 4
Het uhtsoounled conlrl pelmale b2 14 0% TE a3 LG G 12 HE Ly Ga 1940
Feregn exchange 154
Rt ungissounieg contry eshmate ot 3% Dezember
2
IR
Dscratil 10 peesent va'va Hh
Resk marpn e
Cims suttierrent £osls 12 p
Het auistandging claims al 31 Decembor 2012 2827
Het central ostimate development
rcteqee fdeciense) 0 the yedr - Curlent yeor minus prer {143 g1 05 )] 643 G GY 04 44} i B0 G4

yoar

A reconciliation of the net central estimate development to the net incurred claims in the income statement is
included in note 7(C).

The company writes business in currencies other than the Australian dollar in its overseas operations. The
translation of outstanding claims denominated in foreign currencies gives rise {o foreign exchange movements
which have no direct bearing on the develepment of the underlying claims. To eliminate this distortion, claims
liabilities have been franslated to the functional currencies of the company's overseas operations at constant
rates of exchange. All estimates of net central estimate claims cost and cumulative claims payments for the ten
most recent acciden! years reported in functional currencies other than Australian dollars have been transiated
to Australian dollars using the 2013 cumulative average rate of exchange.

The central estimate claims development table is presented net of reinsurance. With operations in 8 couniries,
hundreds of products, various reinsurance arrangements and with the company’s risk tolerance managed on a
consclidated net basis, it is not considered meaningful or practicable to provide this information other than on a
net accident year basis.
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21.  PROVISIONS

PROVISION FOR

LONG SERVICE OTHER TOTAL

2013 LEAVE PROVISIONS PROVISIONS
M SM SM

At 1 January 0.2 0.1 0.3
Other movement - 2.0 2.0
At 31 December 0.2 21 23
Payable within 12 months 0.1 1.9 2.0
Payable in greater than12months @01 02 03
At 31 December 0.2 2.4 2.3

PROVISION FOR

LONG SERVICE OTHER TOTAL

2012 LEAVE PROVISIONS PROVISIONS
SM M 5M

At 1 January 0.1 0.1 0.2
Other movement 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 6.2 0.1 0.3
Payable within 12 months 0.1 - 0.1
Payable in greater than 12 months ‘ R 0.1 0.2

At 31 December 02 01 0.3
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22, EQUITY

{A) Share capital

NUMBER OF SHARES
2013 MILLIONS M
lssued ordinary shares, fully paid at 1 January 230.0 230.0
[ssued ordinary shares, fully paid at 31 December 230.0 230.0
NUMBER OF SHARES
2012 MILLIONS SM
Issued ordinary shares, fully paid at 1 January 230.0 230.0
Issued ordinary shares, fully paid at 31 December 230.0 2300

(B) Movements in share capital

There were no movements in share capital during the year {2012 nil)

(C) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares in the company have no par value and entitle the holder to participate in dividends and ihe
proceeds on winding up of the company in proporiion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.
Ordinary shareholders rank afler all creditors and are entitled to any residual proceeds

(D) Reserves

2013 2012
SM St

Realised capital profits
At 1 January 27.9 278
At 31 December 27.9 27.8
Foreign currency fransiation
At 1 January (25.3) {(33.8)
Other comprehensive income for the year 42.8 85
At 31 December 17.5 {26 3)
Other
At 1 January 1.8
At 31 December 1.8 18
Total reserves at 31 December 47.2 4.4




QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

22.  EQUITY (CONTINUED)

{E) Capital risk management

As a member of the wholly owned group, the company has adopied the risk management policies and
framework of the QBE Group. QBE Group's objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal balance
of debt and equity in the capital structure to reduce the cost of capital whilst meeting capital adequacy
requirements, providing security for policyholders and continuing to provide returns io shareholders.

Where appropriale, adjustments are made to capital levels in light of changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the company's activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company has
the option to adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or debt securities with capital characteristics or sel! assets to reduce debt.

The company is subject to, and complies with, various externally imposed regulatory capital requirements.
These requirements are designed to ensure a sufficient solvency margin is maintained in order to provide
adequate protection for policyholders. In addition, the company aims to maintain a strong credit raling and
robust capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximise shareholder wealth.

From 1 January 2013, a board approved Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) has been in
place following the introduction of the new Life and Generat Insurance Capital standards (LAGIC) The objective
of the company's ICAAP is to ensure that there is an integrated and embedded framework to manage risk and
capital in place in order to support QBE's strategic objectives and business plans and to ensure that adequate
capital is maintained against the risks associated with QBE's activities. The ICAAP ensures the company's
capital is managed in line with its capital management framework that includes capital targets, iriggers and
associated capital actions. The capital targets are set in the context of QBE's risk profile, the board's risk
appetite and regulatory capital requirements.

The company uses an economic capital model (ECM) that 1s used across the QBE Group to assess the level of
capital required for the underwriting, claims estimation, credit market, liquidity and operational risks to which # is
exposed. Economic capital is determined as the level of capital that the company needs to ensure that i can,
with a pre-specified probability, satisfy its ultimate policyholder obligations in relation to all insurance contracts
issued on or before the end of the business plan year. The ECM is used by management to help in the
determination of the strategic capital allocation, business planning, underwriting performance, pricing,
reinsurance and aggregate management. It also assists in determining regulatory capital. Capital across the
QBE Group is allocated to business units, divisions and ultimately to underwriting portfolios according to the
associated risk. The minimum target risk adjusied return on capital is 15%. The business plans include nel
asset projections, dividends, issued share projections and solvency projections as weli as the impacl of potential
acquisitions. In the event of a significant change in the company's risk profile, the ECM will be recaiculated and
the resulls reported to the company's board.

The company maintains an ongoing review of its structure to ensure flexibility in the allocation of capital whilst
minimising the cost of capital. Active management of the business and its capital has enabled the company to

maintain its financial strength and credit rating and has afforded it with good access to capital markets when
needed
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22.  EQUITY (CONTINUED)

(E) Capital risk management (continued)
Management monitors the company's capital levels oh an ongoing basis, with particular focus on the following:

» The company actively manages the components of capital in order to maintain a level of eligible regulatory
capital that exceeds APRA requirements. Having determined that the current risk appetite of the cornpany
remains appropriate, management has set the target level of regulatory capital for 2013 at around 1.8 - 2.2
times the Prescribed Capital Amount (PCA), including the full Insurance Concentration Risk Charge
requirements which take effect 1 January 2014, Management monitors capital and solvency against capital
target and annual rolling three years capital plans.

» The company is subject to regulatory requirements that a minimum level of capital is maintained to meet
obligations to policyholders. It is the company's policy o maintain a capital base appropriate to its size,
business mix, complexilty and risk profile which fully complies with and meets or exceeds regulatory
requirements

» The company believes that insurer financial strength ratings provided by the major rating agencies are an
important factor in demonstrating the financial strength and claims paying ability.

In addition to the management reporting and planning processes, the company has dedicated staff responsible
for understanding the regulatory capital requirements of its operations. The quality of assets (particularly
investments and reinsurance recoveries) held by the company is continuously monitored to ensure any potential
issues are wentified and remedial action, where necessary, Is taken to restore effective capital performance and
levels

23.  MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

2013 2012
SM 5N

Mandatory convertible securities
December 2048 NZ5102 million 91.2 g91.2

In December 20086, the company issued NZ3102 mallion of mandatory converiible noles to QBE Insurance
Group Limited The notes were transferred from QBE Insurance Group Limited to QBE Holdings (AAP) Pty
Limited (the parent entity) in September 2007. The term of the notes is perpetual but they convert to ordinary
shares of the company on the 40" anniversary of their issue

The notes are subordinated and distributions are not cumulative. If a distribution is not paid, QBE Holdings
(AAP) Pty Limited wilt have no claim in respect of non-payment. However, if a distribution is not paid within 20
business days of a distribution payment date, the mandatory convertible notes will convert into ordinary shares
of the company.
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24. APRA CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) Prudential Standard GPS 110 Capital Adequacy for General

Insurance requires that the company maintain a capital base in excess of its minimum capital requirement as
defined under the Prudential Standards.

The following table shows the capital adequacy calculation in accordance with APRA prudential framework. The
2013 position reflects the 2013 quarter APRA return (unaudited).

2013 2012
SM $M
Eligible Tier 1 Capital as defined by APRA
Conlributed equity * 230.0 230.0
Retained profit ' 160.3 66.8
Insurance liability surplus 20.3 39.6
Total equity 410.6 336.4
Additional Tier 1 Capital 821 91.2
Less: APRA deductions {61.8) (16.7)
Total APRA capital base 430.9 410.9
APRA prudentiai capital requirement * 218.9 180.3
APRA capital adequacy multiple 1.97 228
¥

Retained profits are in accordance with APRA Prudential Standards.

Dividends of 5.3 million were paid during the year (2012: $4.9 million)

Retained profits are in accordance with APRA Prudential Standards.

The company has calculated the 2013 prudential capital requirement in accordance with the new LAGIC
standards, which came into effect on 1 January 2013 The prudential capilal requirement amount for 2012
was not calculated under the new LAGIC standards: hence, the prudential capital requirement and the
capital adequacy multiple will not be comparable between current and prior year periods The prudential
capital requirement in 2012 is referred to as “minimum capital requirement” and "prescribed capital amount”
in 2013

R
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QBE INSURANCE {INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The names of persons who were directors of the company at any time during the financial year are as stated in

the direclors’ report

The key management personnel are all the directors of the company and the executives with the greatest

authority for the strategic direction and management of the company

Certain directors of the company are also direclors of other subsidiaries of QBE Insurance Group Limited, the
ultimate parent company Their remuneration, which is paid by a relaled company, has been apportioned lo the
company on a basis consistent with the level of management effort

Key management personnel compensation for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is set out below

2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Short-term employee henefits 5,834 3,367
Post employment benefils 247 202
Other long-term employment benefits 30 57
Termination benefits 195 471
Share based payments 232 303
6,538 4,400
26. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) — Australian firm’
Audit of financial reporls 215 208
Audit of statutory returns 119 78
334 286
Related practices of PwC — Australian firm
(including overseas PwC firms)
Audit of financial reports 313 297
Audit of statutory returns 41 89
Taxation services 33 76
Other consulting and advisory 62 -
449 462
783 748
Audit and assurance services 688 672
Other services 95 76
783 748

i

The board believes some non-audit services are appropriate given the external auditor's knowledge of ihe

Group. The company may engage the external auditor for non-audit services other than the excluded
services subject 1o the general principle that fees for non-audit services should not exceed 50% of all fees
paid to the external auditor in one financial year. External tax services are generally provided by an
accounting firm other than the external auditor Consistent with prior periods, PwC cannot provide the
excluded services of preparing accouniing records or financial reports, asset or liability valuations, acting in
a management capacity, acting as a cuslodian of assets or acting as share registrar
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27,  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2013 2012
SM SM
The company had the following unsecured contingent liahilities:
Security deposit in overseas branch 0.7 0.6
Bankers guarantee to overseas branch 1.6 10
Guaraniee to related entities 13.4 1.5
15.7

The bankers guarantee is in support of an overseas branch as required by local insurance regulators. The
guarantee is in support of a related entity in the QBE Group lo give the related entity a similar credit rating as

the company,

No material losses are expected in relation to lhese guarantees.

28. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
The company had no commitments for expenditure as at 31 December 2013 (2012; nil).

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

2013 2012
M M
Payable:
Not later than one year 4.2 37
Later than one year but less than five years 4.2 7.0
Later than five years 0.1 02
Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases 8.5 10.9

L.ease commitments relate to properly leases in the New Zealand and Singapore branch.
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30. RELATED PARTIES

(A) Parent entity

The parent entity is QBE Holdings (AAP) Pty Limited and the ultimate parent entity is QBE Insurance Group
Limited.

{B} Controlled entities
Interests in controlled entities are set out in note 16.

{C) Transactions with related parties
The following material transactions occurred with related parties:

2013 2012
5'000 $'000
Revenue
Gross earned premium — inward reinsurance 20 1,112
Reinsurance and other recoveries - undiscounted 17,704 106,589
Reinsurance commission 1,024 6,974
Dividends received 12,987 1,539
Paymenls received for management services 725 2,163
Expenses
Outward reinsurance premium 77,584 154,403
Payments made for management services 17,713 14,152
Other transactions
Dividends paid 5,253 4,882

(D) Outstanding balances arising from transactions with related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

2013 2012
$°'000 $'000
Current assets
Reinsurance and other recoveries 124,320 281,301
Trade and other receivables - 2.056
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables 3,167 19,704

{E} Terms and conditions

All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and al marke! rates Qutstanding
batances are unsecured and repayable in cash, except for reinsurance recoveries that are secured hy LOCs
as explained in note 20(A).
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30. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

{F)  Other related party disclosures

All materiai information required to be disclosed under AASB 124: Related Party Disclosures has been included
in the financial statements as follows:

Reference

Dividends from controlled entities MNote B
Interest received or receivable from controlled entities Note 6
Tax sharing agreement Note 8(B)
Amounts due from controlled and related entities Note 12
invesimenis in controlled entities Note 16
Amounts due to conltrolled and related entities Note 18
Outstanding claims Note 20
Mandatory convertible securities Note 23
Remuneration of key management personnel Note 25
Guarantees in respect of related entities Note 27

31. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

There is, at the date of this report, no matter or circumstance that has arisen since 31 December 2013 that has
significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

m the company's operations in fuure financial years; or
{)  the resulis of those operations in future financial years; or
{in}  the comnpany’s state of affairs in future financial years
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QBE INSURANCE (INTERNATIONAL) LMITED

(A.C.N. 000 000 948)

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
For the year ended 31 December 2013

In the directors’ opinion:

(@) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 5 to 65 are inaccordance with the Corporalions Act
2001, including:

(i) complying with accounting standards, the Corporations Reulations 2001 and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements, and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the company's financial positin as at 31 December 2013 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

Note1(A) confirms that the financial statements also comply with Internaticral Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Signed in SYDNEY this;_&day of February 2014 in accordance with a resaition of the direclors.

» j\ ///’///
Director ... A O Director ..../ LA . Y. I 0A
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of QBE
Insurance (International) Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of QB Insurance (International) Limited (the
company), which comprises the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended

on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’
declaration.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

‘The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Tn Note 1(A),
the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our andit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidencee about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of malterial misstatement of the inancial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessiments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the {financial report,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001,

. PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52780 433 75
Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, GPO BOX 2650, SYDNEY NSW 1171
T: +61 2 8266 0000, F: +61 2 8266 9999, L. pree.con.ait

Liabilty limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislalion
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Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion:

(a)  the financial report of QBE Insurance (International) Limited is in accordance with the
Corporations Act zooi, including;

(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 31 December 2013 and
of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

(b)  the company's financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
as disclosed in Note 1(A).

ooyt

PricewaterhouseCoopers

A

J.W. Bennett Sydney
Partner =0 February 2014

I PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757
Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, GPO BOX 2650, SYDNEY NSW 1171
T: +61 2 8266 0000, I'; +61 2 8266 9999, wiviw.pwe.com.an

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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